
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 30 JUNE 2016
at

2.00 PM
in the

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    

Committee
Members:

Councillor Matthew Lee, Councillor David Mapp, Councillor Dr 
Peter Moseley (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Nick Neilson 
(Chairman), Councillor Jacky Smith, Councillor Brian Sumner 
and Councillor Paul Wood

Committee Support
Officer:

Jo Toomey Tel: 01476 406152
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2. APOLOGIES

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 MARCH 2016

(Enclosure)

5. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING



6. INTERNAL AUDIT: ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2015/2016

Internal Audit annual report 2015/2016
(Enclosure)

7. INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW-UP REPORT

Report number CFM375 by the Corporate Finance Manager.
(Enclosure)

8. DRAFT FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2015/16

Report number CFM373 by the Corporate Finance Manager.
(Enclosure)

9. RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY ANNUAL REPORT 
INCLUDING CORPORATE RISK REGISTER

Report number CFM374 by the Corporate Finance Manager. 
(Enclosure)

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT.



MINUTES
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 24 MARCH 2016

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor David Mapp
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Jacky Smith

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Andrea Webster
Councillor Paul Wood

OFFICERS

Corporate Finance Manager (Richard 
Wyles)
Executive Manager, Property (Neil 
Cucksey)
Executive Manager, Growth (Paul 
Thomas)
Business Manager, Property & Facilities 
(Chris Pegge)
Financial Accountant Team Leader (Amy 
Oliver)
Governance & Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

KPMG

John Cornett (Director)
Mike Norman (Manager)

RSM

Amjad Ali (Client Manager)

43. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Lee.

44. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

45. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 DECEMBER 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2015 were agreed as a 
correct record.

Agenda Item 4



2

46. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT - 2014/15

Mike Norman, the Manager from KPMG (the Council’s External Auditor), 
presented the Certification of Grants and Returns for 2014/15, which was a 
requirement of the Public Sector Audit Appointment body. Certification was 
carried out on the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim and the Housing Pooling 
Return.

A qualified certificate was given on the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim after a 
miscalculation was identified in a sample tested in line with the mandated 
methodology. Further testing was required, which again used a mandated 
methodology resulting in a claim report and with that an automatic qualification. 
Members were given reassurance that the amounts involved were low, totalling 
approximately £8.5k in a claim of approximately £30m

While a small adjustment was required to the Housing Pooling return, an 
unqualified certificate was given.

The report also included details of the fees and charges for certification work. 
Public Sector Audit Appointments set fee levels for the work carried out on 
housing benefit, however the Council was subject to an additional charge to 
meet the cost of the further work required. The fee for testing the housing 
pooling return was agreed directly with the Council and based on the amount of 
work that was required. 

Members of the Committee noted the report.

47. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16

John Cornett, the Director from KPMG presented the External Audit Plan 
2015/16. He informed members that the audit would give an opinion on the 
Council’s financial statements and a conclusion on measures taken by the 
Council to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Through a process of risk assessment and identification, one significant risk 
was identified both locally and nationally, which related to provision for 
business rate appeals. This was highlighted because of the value associated 
with the provision, the volatility of appeals and that they were outside the 
control of the Council. External Audit was also required to take account of two 
other potential risks: management overriding of controls and fraudulent revenue 
recognition.

Members queried how the levels of materiality that were specified in the plan 
compared to the figures used in 2014/15. An explanation was given that the 
levels of materiality had been adjusted and were driven by the financial risk 
faced by all authorities and the need to achieve savings and drive efficiencies.

The Committee noted the draft plan.



3

48. INTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced report number CFM359, which 
gave an overview of work completed by Internal Audit between 19 November 
2015 and 9 March 2016.

(1) Internal Audit Progress Report

Amjad Ali presented the report on behalf of RSM, which had been re-
awarded the contract for providing internal audit services to the Council. He 
confirmed that all the work on the internal audit plan for 2015/16 had now 
been completed with seven reports finalised since the Committee was last 
updated. Of those audits, 3 were given a positive, green assurance with no 
management actions raised (treasury management, elections and planning 
fees) while risk management was given a green assurance with three low 
risk recommendations raised. The remaining three audits were given 
positive opinions with an amber/green level of assurance: 6 low risk 
recommendations were raised in relation to green waste, 5 low and 2 high 
risk recommendations were raised in relation to gas servicing and 3 
medium and 3 low risk recommendations were raised in relation to tenancy 
management.

Further detail was discussed in relation to gas servicing. In response to a 
member’s question, the Business Manager, Assets and Facilities explained 
that information relating to the number of properties where gas servicing 
had been completed had been consolidated and reconciled on the core 
asset management database. A 3-month monitoring period was underway 
during which the old and new systems would run parallel with one another 
to ensure that there was confidence that the new system was running 
correctly. The testing phase was due to be completed by May 2016.

One member asked questions regarding the sample testing which identified 
instances where the four-week tenancy notice period was not being 
adhered to. Tenancies started on a Monday and ended on a Sunday, 
however, of the sample tested, a number were identified where the notice 
period began part-way through the week, rather than commencing the 
following Monday, which ultimately resulted in lost. Members noted that a 
wholesale review of tenancy agreements was underway, which could 
provide an opportunity to address the internal audit recommendations by 
changing the date from which the four-week notice period would 
commence.

Members also gave additional consideration to recommendations in 
relation to green waste. One Councillor made comments about the way in 
which payment for green bins was changing; residents were offered a 
reduced rate for signing up to pay annually by direct debit. No discount was 
offered to customers who paid by debit card, for which the Council was not 
subject to transaction fees, about which some concern was expressed. 
Members also raised concerns about the availability of the offer for those 



4

residents who did not have access to the internet. Officers provided some 
reassurance that a lack of internet access would not prevent a customer 
from setting up a direct debit, explaining that customer services advisors 
were able to arrange this over the telephone. Some members also made 
comment about difficulties that had been experienced with the system 
through which the direct debit had to be set up. Committee members 
recommended that the decision to offer reductions to residents signing up 
for direct debit and the way in which systems had operated during the 
renewal period should be considered by the Scrutiny Committee. It was 
further suggested that the Council may benefit from speaking to customers 
who had chosen to end their subscription to the green bin service to find 
out why.

The contents of the report were noted.

Recommendation:

That the Scrutiny Committee should consider the decision to offer 
reductions to customers paying via direct debit for green bin 
renewals together with the way systems had operated during the 
renewal period.

(2) Internal Audit Follow-up Report

Since the last meeting of the Committee, Mr. Ali reported that an internal 
audit follow-up report had also been completed. The report, which reviewed 
progress against the implementation of medium and high risk 
recommendations made by internal audit, stated that little progress had 
been made in implementing management actions. Four of the 
recommendations had been completed while two were in progress and two 
had not been implemented. The next follow-up report presented to the 
Committee would provide an update on those recommendations where 
implementation was ongoing or had yet to begin.

Members of the Committee noted the contents of the report.

49. INDICATIVE INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND PLAN - 2016/17

Mr Ali from RSM presented the draft internal audit plan for 2016/17. In 
preparing the plan Internal Audit had considered the Council’s corporate 
objectives, risk profile and assurance framework together with other factors 
affecting South Kesteven District Council including emerging issues that would 
impact on the whole local government sector. The draft plan also incorporated 
any requests for work made by the Council’s management team. As well as the 
detailed plan for 2016/17, the report also outlined a 3-year strategy.

This plan was the first one produced under the new contract, which had seen a 
reduction in audit days to allow an overall contract saving. In total 100 days had 
been allocated with 20 contingency days for any matters that emerged during 
the year that officers or members felt it appropriate to look at.



5

Committee members were reminded that they had direct access to RSM and 
the suggestion was made that regular meetings could be scheduled with 
internal audit outside of the formal committee meeting.

Members were generally supportive of the proposed plan however, following a 
recent virus incident at Lincolnshire County Council, an additional suggestion 
was made that resilience of IT systems to cyber-attack should be tested. All 
members of the Committee agreed that this would be worthwhile and 
suggested that the scope of the proposed audit of IT resilience could be 
worded in a way that enabled testing members’ concerns.

Members approved the draft internal audit plan for 2016/17.

50. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial Accountant Team Leader presented report number CFM365 
which asked the Committee to approve the accounting policies for use in the 
production of the 2015/16 financial statements. Members noted that very few 
changes had been made to the policies that were used in the production of the 
2014/15 financial statements. The only substantive change brought to the 
Committee’s attention related to the introduction of IFRS 13 Fair Value 
Measurement which impacted on the accounting policy Investment Property 
and Financial Instruments.

Decision: 

The Committee approves the Statement of Accounting Policies as set out 
in appendix 1 of report number CFM365 to be used in the production of 
the 2015/16 financial statements.

51. PENSION ASSUMPTIONS

The Financial Accountant Team Leader presented report number CFM367 on 
the underlying assumptions to be used to calculate International Accounting 
Standard 19 pension figures in the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts. The 
assumptions were based on price inflation, pension increase rate, salary 
increase rate and demographic assumptions. Members noted that the 
assumptions in the report were based on figures from January 2016 and that 
the final version would be based on information that was correct as at 31 March 
2016.

Decision:

The Committee approves the International Accounting Standard 19 
assumptions to be used in the production of the 2015/16 Statement of 
Accounts.



6

52. RISK MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE

The Corporate Finance Manager drew members’ attention to report number 
CFM362 on the corporate risk register. Since the register was last presented to 
Committee in June 2015, it had been subject to a fundamental review to take 
away those actions that were no longer relevant and reposition risks on a 
strategic basis, including listing out new risk categories with longer timelines 
attached.

One of the new themes that had emerged as part of the review was working in 
a commercial way, which recognised risks associated with entering new 
spheres of operation to ensure that the organisation had the appropriate culture 
and skills to meet the challenge.

Members discussed how the Council’s risk register related to its appetite for 
risk. The risk register incorporated the larger strategic risks that the authority 
would face and the actions put into place to mitigate the risk and reduce the 
residual risk. It was suggested that risk appetite could be reflected in the risk 
register by including a target risk level.

Decision

The Committee notes the contents of report number CFM362 and 
approves the updated Corporate Risk Register as attached at appendix A 
to the report.

53. COUNTER-FRAUD STRATEGY

The Governance and Risk Officer presented report number CFM361, to which 
the draft revised counter-fraud strategy was appended. The document had 
been refreshed in-line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk 
of Fraud and Corruption. In October 2015, CIPFA also published a counter-
fraud assessment tool which included 68 statements against which the Council 
could judge the level it was currently at and identify and map where it wanted to 
be in the future. The assessment was due to be carried out imminently and 
members were advised that the findings would be reported back to a future 
meeting of the Committee.

Members also noted that proactive work was underway developing the counter-
fraud culture in the organisation, some measures for which were being led by 
the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership.

Members complimented the draft strategy and how easy it was to understand.

Decision:

The Committee approves the updated counter-fraud strategy appended to 
report number CFM361



7

54. FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

The Corporate Finance Manager presented report number CFM366 on 
proposed updates to the Financial Regulations. Members were asked to 
recommend the changes to the Financial Regulations to Council for its approval 
on 21 April 2016.

Changes to the Regulations proposed in the report included amendments to 
reflect the current management structure of the Council following the corporate 
redesign and the subsequent adjustment of levels of authorisation for team 
leaders with increasing limits across all layers outlined in the scheme. Other 
proposed additions were a reference to the procedure for compensation 
payments and an updated layout to ensure that Regulations were clear and 
easy for users to understand.

While recognising that in some areas team leaders had replaced service 
managers and that the subsequent reduction of service managers had 
broadened the remits of business managers, members of the Committee 
expressed some concerns about the proposed increases to the levels for 
virement. The comments made reflected a view that the delegated limit for 
Executive Members was too high. Since the introduction of the previous limits 
there were only a small number of occasions when full Council was asked to 
authorise a virement that exceeded the delegated level. To this end members 
suggested that there was no evidence of a need to increase the point at which 
Council authorisation would be required.

Officers stated that the proposed changes to the limits had arisen from 
consultation with officers which identified that the limits in place were not 
sufficient to allow them to carry out their daily work without having to elevate 
decisions through the management structure. Members did not feel that this 
provided sufficient justification to increase the limits for which members of the 
Executive had delegated authority to sign-off and consequently agreed to 
recommend that Council approve the statements subject to the substitution of 
the proposed authorised levels with those that were currently in place.

Decision:

The Committee recommends to Council the approval of the updated 
Financial Regulations as appended to report number CFM366 and their 
inclusion in the Council’s Constitution subject to the substitution of the 
proposed delegated/authorised limits for virement set out in appendix b 
to the report with the limits within the existing scheme. 

55. CONTRACT AND PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES

The Corporate Finance Manager presented report number CFM364, appended 
to which were the updated contract and procurement procedure rules (CPPR), 
which set out the regulations that must be followed by the council in the 
procurement of goods, services and works. The review, which was led by 



8

Procurement Lincolnshire, incorporated mandatory and proposed discretionary 
changes that reflected changes in statute and emerging best practice. 
Members were also reassured that although not reflected in existing 
documentation, the Council had been operating in compliance with the latest 
Public Contracts Regulations which came into effect in February 2015.

Members were supportive of the proposed revisions to the CPPR, mentioning 
specifically provisions that made it easier for small local businesses to engage 
with the council in procurement matters and subsequent opportunities through 
this to recycle the local economy.

Decision:

The Committee recommends to Council the approval of the updated 
Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules and their inclusion in the 
Council’s Constitution

56. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 15:23.



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 

Annual Internal Audit Report 2015/2016 

 

30 June 2016 
 

Agenda Item 6



     

 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 1 

CONTENTS 

 
1 The head of internal audit opinion ................................................................................................................................ 2 

2 The basis of our internal audit opinion ......................................................................................................................... 4 

3 Our performance .......................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Appendix A: Annual opinions ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

Appendix B: Summary of internal audit work completed 2015/2016 ................................................................................ 9 

For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 13 

 

 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other 

professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be 

assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s 

responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests 

with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied 

upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein.  

Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have agreed to state to them. This report should not 

therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 

for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Council which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report 

(or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or 

liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by 

any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by 

agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon 

Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance


 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 2 

1.1 The opinion 

For the 12 months ended 31 March 2016 the Head of Internal Audit opinion for South Kesteven District Council is as 

follows: 

Head of internal audit opinion 2015/2016 

The Council has an adequate and effective framework for risk 

management, governance and internal control. 

 

However, our work has identified further enhancements to the 

framework of internal control to ensure that it remains adequate and 

effective. 

 

Please see Appendix A for the full range of annual opinions available to us in preparing this report and opinion. 

1.2 Scope of our work 

The formation of our opinion is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by 

the Governance and Audit Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance, subject to the inherent 

limitations described below. 

The opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the organisation. The 

opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans generated from a robust and organisation-led 

assurance framework. As such, the assurance framework is one component that the Council takes into account in 

making its Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

 

1.3 Factors and findings which have informed our opinion 

Governance 

To inform our governance opinion for 2015/16 we have taken into consideration the governance and oversight related 
elements of each of the reviews undertaken as part of the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan. There is a sound governance 
framework in place and we have observed that the Governance and Audit Committee is effective in monitoring and 
challenging management. This also builds upon our cumulative knowledge of the Council’s governance processes 
through coverage in previous years. The acceptance and implementation of agreed action for findings raised during 
the year is an important contributing factor when assessing the assurance opinion on Governance. It is pleasing to 
note that management is receptive to findings identified and work towards implementing and addressing the issues 
identified within internal audit reports. 

1 THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the Head of Internal Audit is required to 

provide an annual opinion, based upon and limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy 

and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes. The 

opinion should contribute to the organisation's Annual Governance Statement. 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 3 

Risk Management 

We undertook a review of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements in 2015/16. The Council has an established 

Risk Management Strategy in place which is designed to reflect current best practice in local authority risk 

management. The risks identified are recorded at either the corporate level, in a Corporate Risk Register, or at an 

operational level in Business Service Risk Registers. This two tier approach ensures that the highest level strategic 

risks, those which present the greatest challenge to the Council, are identified, evaluated and closely monitored by the 

Governance and Audit Committee. Less significant risks, which are more operational than strategic in nature, are 

monitored by the Risk Management Group. Our review identified three low priority findings and resulted in substantial 

assurance. 

Internal Controls 

We undertook 22 internal audit reviews in 2015/16 which included one advisory and three follow-up reviews. For the 

18 reviews resulting in an assurance opinion there were 12 reviews (67%) which resulted in a substantial assurance 

level being given and six (33%) where reasonable assurance was given. 

A summary of internal audit work undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is provided at Appendix B. 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 4 

2.1 Acceptance of internal audit findings 

Management have agreed actions to address all of the findings reported by the internal audit service during 

2015/2016. 

2.2 Implementation of internal audit recommendations 

Our follow up of the actions agreed to address previous years' internal audit high and medium findings shows that the 

organisation had made good progress in implementing the agreed actions. 

 

In 2014/15 we raised 98 internal audit recommendations (two High, 41 Medium, 41 Low and 14 advisory) of which 97 

recommendations were accepted by management (one medium recommendation relating stock holding arrangements 

was not accepted). Both High priority recommendations raised in 2014/15 have been implemented in full. 

The first Follow Up audit in 2015/16 confirmed that the four Medium priority recommendations raised in 2014/15 

remained outstanding as at 31 March 2015; these related to undertaking stock condition surveys (Planned Cyclical 

Maintenance & Capital Programme), updating s106 agreement details onto the Local Land Charges Register (Section 

106), reconciling planning and finance systems for payments received (Planning) and reconciling the Council’s asset 

registers (Asset Management Plan).  

2 THE BASIS OF OUR INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

As well as those headlines discussed at paragraph 1.3, the following areas have helped to inform 

our opinion. A summary of internal audit work undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is 

provided at Appendix B. 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 5 

Our follow up work in 2015/16 confirmed that the recommendation relating to Planning has been implemented and the 

remaining three were in progress of being implemented. 

In 2015/16 we have undertaken three follow up reports and these have been presented to the Governance and Audit 

Committee during the year. The first two follow up audits resulted in reasonable and good progress respectively. The 

third follow up audit resulted in little progress being made to implement previous internal audit findings. 

 

2.3 Working with other assurance providers 

In forming our opinion we have not placed any direct reliance on other assurance providers. 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 6 

 

3.1 Conflicts of interest 

RSM has not undertaken any work or activity during 2015/2016 that would lead us to declare any conflict of interest. 

3.2 Conformance with internal auditing standards 

RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS). 

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk 

assurance service line commissioned an external independent review of our internal audit services in 2011 to provide 

assurance whether our approach meets the requirements of the International Professional Practices Framework 

(IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) on which PSIAS is based. 

The external review concluded that “the design and implementation of systems for the delivery of internal audit 

provides substantial assurance that the standards established by the IIA in the IPPF will be delivered in an adequate 

and effective manner”. Work is in hand to arrange our next review. 

The risk assurance service line has in place a quality assurance and improvement programme to ensure continuous 

improvement of our internal audit services. Resulting from the programme there are no areas which we believe 

warrant flagging to your attention as impacting on the quality of the service we provide to you. 

 

3 OUR PERFORMANCE 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 7 

3.3 Performance indicators 

A number of performance indicators were agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee. Our performance against 

those indicators is as follows: 

Delivery   

 Target Actual 

Audit scopes issued to the 

relevant Director 
100% 100% 

Draft reports issued within 10 

days of debrief meeting 
10 days 9 days 

Management responses received 

within 10 days of draft report 
10 days 12.5 days 

Final report issued within 5 days 

of management response 
5 days 2 days 

Response times to all general 

enquiries for assistance 
2 days 2 days 

Completion of audit plan by  

31 March 2016 
100% 100% 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 8 

The following shows the full range of opinions available to us within our internal audit methodology to provide you with 

context regarding your annual internal audit opinion. 

Annual opinions 

The Council has an adequate and effective framework for risk management, 

governance and internal control. 

The Council has an adequate and effective framework for risk management, 

governance and internal control. 

 

However, our work has identified further enhancements to the framework of 

risk management, governance and internal control to ensure that it remains 

adequate and effective. 

There are weaknesses in the framework of governance, risk management 

and control such that it could be, or could become, inadequate and 

ineffective. 

The Council does not have an adequate framework of risk management, 

governance or internal control. 

 

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL OPINIONS 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 9 

Assignment Assurance level Actions agreed 

L M H 

Follow Up 1 (1.15/16) 

 

REASONABLE 

PROGRESS 

 

0 4 0 

Food Safety Enforcement 

(2.15/16) 

Substantial 

1 2 0 

Welfare Reform (3.15/16) 

Substantial 

2 0 0 

Partnerships (4.15/16) 

Reasonable 

2 3 0 

Homelessness (5.15/16) 

Substantial 

3 0 0 

Document Management and 

CRM (6.15/16) 

 

ADVISORY 

REVIEW 

 

5 4 0 

Aids and Adaptations (7.15/16) 

Reasonable 

4 3 0 

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 
COMPLETED 2015/2016 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 10 

Assignment Assurance level Actions agreed 

L M H 

Waste and Recycling - 

Inventory and Stock (8.15/16) 

Substantial 

2 1 0 

Voids Management (9.15/16) 

Substantial 

2 1 0 

Disposal of Surplus Equipment 

(10.15/16) 

Substantial 

0 2 0 

Insurance (11.15/16) 

Substantial 

1 2 0 

Safeguarding (12.15/16) 

Substantial 

0 0 0 

Follow Up 2 (13.15/16) 

 

GOOD 

PROGRESS 

 

0 4 0 

General Ledger (14.15/16) 

Substantial 

1 1 0 

Green Waste (15.15/16) 

Reasonable 

6 0 0 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 11 

Assignment Assurance level Actions agreed 

L M H 

Treasury Management 

(16.15/16) 

Substantial 

0 0 0 

Gas Servicing (17.15/16) 

Reasonable 

5 2 0 

Elections (18.15/16) 

Substantial 

0 0 0 

Follow Up 3 (19.15/16) 

 

LITTLE 

PROGRESS 

 

0 4 0 

Planning Fees (20.15/17) 

Substantial 

0 0 0 

Risk Management (21.15/16) 

Substantial 

3 0 0 

Tenancy Management 

(22.15/16) 

Reasonable 

3 3 0 

 

 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit annual report 2015/16  | 12 

We use the following levels of opinion classification within our internal audit reports. Reflecting the level of assurance 

the Council can take: 

None Partial Reasonable Substantial 

    

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the 

Council cannot take 

assurance that the controls 

upon which the organisation 

relies to manage this risk 

are suitably designed, 

consistently applied or 

effective. 

Urgent action is needed to 

strengthen the control 

framework to manage the 

identified risk(s). 

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the 

Council can take partial 

assurance that the controls 

to manage this risk are 

suitably designed and 

consistently applied. 

Action is needed to 

strengthen the control 

framework to manage the 

identified risk(s). 

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the 

Council can take 

reasonable assurance that 

the controls in place to 

manage this risk are 

suitably designed and 

consistently applied. 

However, we have identified 

issues that need to be 

addressed in order to 

ensure that the control 

framework is effective in 

managing the identified 

risk(s). 

Taking account of the 

issues identified, the 

Council can take substantial 

assurance that the controls 

upon which the organisation 

relies to manage the 

identified risk(s) are suitably 

designed, consistently 

applied and operating 

effectively. 



 

rsmuk.com 

The UK group of companies and LLPs trading as RSM is a member of the RSM network. RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network. Each member of the RSM network is 
an independent accounting and consulting firm each of which practises in its own right. The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity of any description in any jurisdiction. The RSM network is 

administered by RSM International Limited, a company registered in England and Wales (company number 4040598) whose registered office is at 11 Old Jewry, London EC2R 8DU. The brand and 
trademark RSM and other intellectual property rights used by members of the network are owned by RSM International Association, an association governed by article 60 et seq of the Civil Code of 
Switzerland whose seat is in Zug. 

RSM UK Consulting LLP, RSM Corporate Finance LLP, RSM Restructuring Advisory LLP, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP, RSM Tax and Advisory Services LLP, RSM UK Audit LLP and RSM 
UK Tax and Accounting Limited are not authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 but we are able in certain circumstances to offer a limited range of investment services 

because we are members of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. We can provide these investment services if they are an incidental part of the professional services we 
have been engaged to provide. Baker Tilly Creditor Services LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority for credit-related regulated activities. RSM & Co (UK) Limited is 
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct a range of investment business activities. Whilst every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, information contained in this 

communication may not be comprehensive and recipients should not act upon it without seeking professional advice. 

© 2015 RSM UK Group LLP, all rights reserved 

 

Chris Williams 

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07753 584 993 

Address: 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 

Suite A, 7th Floor 

City Gate East 

Tollhouse Hill 

Nottingham NG1 5FS 

Phone: 0115 964 4450 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 



Page 1 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF:  CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER 

REPORT NO: CFM375

DATE:    30 June 2016

TITLE: Internal Audit Follow Up Report

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

None

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Francis Cartwright
Executive Member Governance

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles
Corporate Finance Manager
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
Tel: (01476) 406210

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below:

Full impact assessment
Required:

No
FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS None

1. RECOMMENDATION

The Governance and Audit Committee is requested to review and approve the 
contents of the attached Follow Up Report that has been prepared by the internal 
auditors RSM.
 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This is the first in a series of regular in-year follow up reports summarising the results 
of follow up work undertaken by the internal audit service. 

Agenda Item 7

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


Page 2 

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

Introduction and Background

Management action tracking enhances an organisation’s risk management and 
governance processes. It provides management with a method to record the 
implementation status of management actions and allows Governance and Audit 
Committee to monitor actions taken by management.

In accordance with the internal audit protocol, RSM only follow up those management 
actions classified as high and medium risk.  Where the indication is that actions have 
been implemented, RSM will undertake limited testing to confirm this.  As part of the 
Follow Up review, RSM will verify this information (for high and medium management 
actions) and complete audit testing to confirm the level of implementation stated and 
compliance with controls.

Summary of Follow Up Work Undertaken 

Four audits were followed up as detailed below:

Number of Management Actions
Audit Followed 

up Implemented Ongoing Not 
Implemented

Insurance 2 2 - -

Follow Up 2 3 1 2 -

Follow Up 3 4 2 2 -

Tenancy Management 3 2 - 1

12 7 4 1
% 58 33 9

Details of outstanding follow up management actions are detailed at appendix A.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/budget, 
people, land/property etc.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA
        QUALITY)

None

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

None



Page 3 

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

These are included in the report.

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

10.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations require every local authority to maintain an adequate and effective internal 
audit service that would include a review of progress. Those charged with governance 
are asked to review the contents of the attached report which summarises the work 
undertaken by the internal auditors over the first quarter of the year. 

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT BUSINESS MANAGER

None

12.     APPENDICES:

Appendix A – Follow Up Report prepared by RSM 



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Follow Up 1 

FINAL 

Internal Audit Follow up report: 1.16/17 

14 June 2016 

 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  

responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 



     

 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Executive summary .................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Findings and Management Actions ............................................................................................................................ 4 

Appendix A: Definitions for Progress Made .................................................................................................................... 9 

Appendix B: Scope ........................................................................................................................................................ 10 

Appendix C: Review of Completeness .......................................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix D: Actions Not Yet Due ................................................................................................................................. 12 

For further information contact ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other 

professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be 

assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s 

responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests 

with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied 

upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein.  This report should not therefore be 

regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any 

purpose or in any context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its 

own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to 

any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on 

representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by 

agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after 

the date of this report. RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th 

floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

Debrief held 20 May 2016 Internal Audit team Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 
Rob Barnett, Director 
Amjad Ali, Client Manager 
Habiba Rasul, Lead Auditor 
Caitlin Stubbs, Internal Auditor 
 

Draft report issued 

Revised draft report 

issued 

3 June 2016 

14 June 2016 

Responses received 14 June 2016 

Final report issued 14 June 2016 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Corporate Finance Manager 

Distribution Richard Wyles, Corporate Finance Manager 

Claire Roberts, Management Accountant 

Team Leader 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance


 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 2 

1.1 Introduction 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2016/17 we have undertaken a review to follow up progress 
made to implement the previously agreed management actions. The audits considered as part of the follow up review 
were: 

• 11.15/16 Insurance 

• 13.15/16 Follow Up 2 

• 19.15/16 Follow Up 3 

• 22.15/16 Tenancy Management 

12 ‘medium’ management actions were considered in this review. The focus of this review was to provide assurance 

that all management actions previously made/ agreed have been adequately implemented. 

1.2 Conclusion 

Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our 

definitions set out in Appendix A, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has 

demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing management actions agreed to 

address internal audit management actions. 

             

 
            

We have reiterated management actions where these have not yet been implemented. In 

addition, we have agreed new / revised management actions where appropriate; these are 

detailed in the action plan. 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 3 

1.3 Management Action Tracking 

Management action tracking enhances an organisation’s risk management and governance processes. It provides 

management with a method to record the implementation status of management actions made by assurance 

providers, whilst allowing the Governance and Audit Committee to monitor actions taken by management. 

Management action tracking is undertaken by South Kesteven District Council’s management on a regular basis, with 

an update provided to the Governance and Audit Committee at each meeting. As part of our Follow-up review, we 

have verified this information (for the medium management actions) and completed audit testing to confirm the level of 

implementation stated and compliance with controls. 

1.4 Progress on Actions 

Implementation 

status by review 

Number of 

Management 

Actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions  

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing (2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Confirmation as 

completed or no 

longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

Insurance  2 2 0 0 0 2 

Follow Up 2 3 1 2 0 0 1 

Follow Up 3 4 2 2 0 0 2 

Tenancy 
Management 
 

3 2 0 1 0 2 

Implementation 

status by 

Management action  

priority 

Number of 

actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions  

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing (2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Confirmation as 

completed or no 

longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

High 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Medium 12 7 4 1 0 7 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 4 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included only those actions graded as 2 and 3. Each management action followed up has been 

categorised in line with the following: 

Status Detail 

1 The entire management action has been fully implemented. 

2 The management action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

3 The management action has not been implemented. 

4 The management action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 

 

2.1 13.15/16 Follow Up 2  

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

2.1.1 Section 106 

A log is maintained of the 
notifications and receipt is 
monitored. 

Upon receipt of notification of 
a Section 106 agreement from 
Legal, the Local Land 
Charges Register will be 
updated in a timely manner, 
ideally within one month of 
receipt.   

The outstanding 12 
notifications will be updated as 
part of the installation of the 
new system which is currently 
being setting up.  

In the meantime a manual 
check, where the agreements 
which aren’t on the system, 
are recorded on a list and are 
checked when the searches 
are being completed. 

Jan 2016 Medium Discussion with the Senior 
Land Charges Officer 
confirmed that the 12 
outstanding S106 section 
agreements have been 
updated on to the system. 

We were unable to perform 
testing around notifications 
received by the Land 
charges team at the time of 
the follow up as the 
department was in the 
process of migrating on to a 
new system. 

2 Upon receipt of notification 
of a Section 106 
agreement from Legal, the 
Local Land Charges 
Register will be updated in 
a timely manner, ideally 
within one month of 
receipt.   

This process will take place 
once we have migrated to 
the new system at the end 
of the month (June 2016). 

 

Medium 30 June 

2016 

Senior Land 

Charges 

Officer 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 5 

2.1 13.15/16 Follow Up 2  

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

2.1.3 Building Control 

Once the reporting facility is 

developed, and reports are 

available from the system, 

reconciliations between the 

Finance System and Building 

Control System will be brought 

up to date, with a record of the 

officers preparing and 

reviewing the reconciliations 

documented. 

January 

2016 

Medium Discussion with the 
Building Control Manager 
identified that the Council 
migrated to the IDOX 
system in July 2015. As 
reported to the Governance 
& Audit Committee on 3rd 
December 2015, the 
reconciliation had not been 
undertaken due to the 
reporting facility still being 
developed to enable the 
correct reports to be run to 
undertake the 
reconciliations.  

Since then, the department 
have had some ICT system 
issues which have led to an 
increase in the time taken 
to complete the 
reconciliation.  

For this reason, only the 
reconciliations for January 
and February 2016 have 
been completed prior to our 
follow up visit. The ICT 
issue was resolved on 2nd 
June 2016 which should 
enable the reconciliation to 
be brought up to date and 
be completed each month 
in the future.  

2 Reconciliations between 

the Finance System and 

Building Control System 

will be brought up to date, 

with a record of the officers 

preparing and reviewing 

the reconciliations 

documented. 

Medium 30 June 

2016 

Building 

Control 

Manager 

 

 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 6 

2.2 19.15/16 Follow Up 3 

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

2.2.1 Aids and Adaptations 
The Council are currently in 
the process of developing a 
policy which will include the 
framework within which the 
Council operates its aid and 
adaptations service.  

February 

2016 

Medium Discussion with the Business 
Manager Property and 
Development confirmed that 
the Council has drafted an 
Aids and Adaptations 
Programme Protocol and 
Framework that defines the 
framework within which the 
Council operates its aids and 
adaptations service.  

However the Framework 
document has not yet been 
approved. Once this has 
been approved by the 
Council it will be distributed 
to all relevant staff.  

2 We will ensure that once 
the Aids and Adaptations 
Policy has been approved 
by the Council we will 
distribute the Policy to all 
relevant staff members. 

Medium August 2016 Business 
Manager 

Property & 
Development 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 7 

2.2 19.15/16 Follow Up 3 

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

2.2.2 Waste and Recycling – 

Inventory & Stock 

Staff will be reminded about 

the importance of adhering to 

the stock procedures. 

Instructions issued and Audit 

provided with copy of the 

documentation, along with 

copies of the procedure notes 

completed 20th January. 

Immediate Medium Discussion with the 
Business Manager Street 
Care Services confirmed 
that an email was sent out 
to the Operations Team 
Leader and the Supervisors 
reminding them of the 
importance of adhering to 
the stock procedures. In 
addition to this the stock 
procedures were 
amended/updated and 
distributed to the team. 

Review of the stock 
procedures confirmed that 
they were up to date and 
dated 18th January 2016 
Version 3. These were 
distributed to the team as 
part of the email that was 
sent out on 19th January 
2016.  

Testing a sample of 5 stock 
cards identified that: 

In one case, the Supervisor 
had not signed and 
approved the stock (Boots 
size 7) which was issued 
out on 03/05/2016. 

2 We will remind staff about 

the importance of adhering 

to stock procedures. 

Low Immediate Business 

Manager 

Street Care 

Services 

 

 

 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 8 

2.3 22.15/16 Tenancy Management 

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

2.3.1 Consideration to be given to 

re-introducing occupancy 

checks, however, this will 

need approval from Strategic 

Management Team. 

May 

2016 

Medium Occupancy checks are 
forming part of the new 
Housing Officer job roles 
that are to be put in place 
once the current service 
review has finished. 

The Housing Officers will 
maintain a three yearly cycle 
of occupancy checks to 
ensure that each property on 
their ‘patch’ has been 
reviewed and checked in this 
time frame. 

3 We will ensure that the 
three yearly cycles of 
property inspections will 
begin once the service 
review concludes in July 
2016. 

Medium September 

2016 

Business 

Manager 

Housing 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 9 

The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing actions. This opinion relates solely to the 

implementation of those actions followed up and not does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment 

Progress in 

implementing 

actions 

Overall number of 

actions fully 

implemented 

Consideration of 

high actions 

Consideration of 

medium actions 

Consideration of low actions 

Good 75% None outstanding None outstanding All low actions outstanding are 

in the process of being 

implemented 

Reasonable 51–75% None outstanding 75% of medium 

actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

75% of low actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

Little 30–50% All high actions 

outstanding are in 

the process of 

being implemented 

50% of medium 

actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

50% of low actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

Poor < 30% Unsatisfactory 

progress has been 

made to implement 

high actions 

Unsatisfactory 

progress has been 

made to implement 

medium actions 

Unsatisfactory progress has 

been made to implement low 

actions 

 

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS FOR PROGRESS MADE 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 10 

Scope of the review 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2015/16 we will review the management actions raised by 

Internal Audit in the following reviews: 

  11.15/16 Insurance 

  13.15/16 Follow Up 2 

  19.15/16 Follow Up 3 

  22.15/16 Tenancy Management 

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment: 

 In accordance with management’s request, we have only followed up those management actions classified as 
High and Medium risk. Management actions categorised as Low risk are to be followed up separately by Council 
staff. It was also agreed that Management actions made in ‘Advisory’ reviews would not be followed up. 

 The review only covers audit management actions previously made and does not review the whole control 
framework of the areas listed above; therefore we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and control 
framework. 

 Where the indication is that management actions have been implemented, we will undertake limited testing to 
confirm this. 

 Where testing has been undertaken, our samples have been selected over the period since actions were 
implemented or controls enhanced. 

 Our work does not provide any guarantee or absolute assurance against material and / or other errors, loss or 
fraud 

 Any testing undertaken as part of this audit has been on a sample basis for the financial year 2015/16 only or of a 
bespoke sample from a business area. 

 

APPENDIX B: SCOPE 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 11 

APPENDIX C: REVIEW OF COMPLETENESS 

 

2015/16 Reports Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Management actions 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference Agreed 

To Be 
Followed Up 

Not to Be 
Followed Up 

by IA 

01.15/16 Follow Up (May 2015) 4 4 0  

02.15/16 Food Safety 3 2 1  

03.15/16 Welfare Reform 2 0 2  

04.15/16 Partnerships 5 3 2  

05.15/16 Homelessness 3 0 3  

06.15/16 Document Management and CRM 9 0 9  

07.15/16 Aids and Adaptations 7 3 4 19.15/16 

08.15/16 Waste and Recycling - Inventory and 
Stock 

3 1 2 19.15/16 

09.15/16 Voids Management 3 1 2 19.15/16 

10.15/16 Disposal of Surplus Equipment 2 2 0 19.15/16 

11.15/16 Insurance  3 2 1 This review 

12.15/16 Safeguarding 0 0 0  

13.15/16 Follow Up 2 3 3 0 This review 

14.15/16 General Ledger 2 1 1  

15.15/16 Green Waste 6 0 0  

16.15/16 Treasury Management 0 0 0  

17.15/16 Gas Servicing 7 2 5  

18.15/16 Elections 0 0 0  

19.15/16 Follow Up 3 4 4 0 This review 

20.15/16 Planning Fees 0 0 0  

21.15/16 Risk Management 3 0 0  

22.15/16 Tenancy Management 3 3 0 This review 

 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up1 | 1.16/17 | 12 

The table below lists the Management Actions that were Not Yet Due during the time of this Follow up Audit 

Assignment being carried out. 

13. 15/16 Follow Up 2 Management action 

19. 14/15 Building Control 

In July 2015 the APAS (recording system) 

was changed to IDOX. The reporting facility 

is still to be developed to enable system 

reports to be produced so that reconciliations 

can be carried out. 

Once the reporting facility is developed, and reports are available from 

the system, reconciliations between the Finance System and Building 

Control System will be brought up to date, with a record of the officers 

preparing and reviewing the reconciliations documented. 

APPENDIX D: ACTIONS NOT YET DUE  



 

 

 

Chris Williams 

Chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

07753 584993 

 

Robert Barnett 

robert.barnett@rsmuk.com 

07791 237658 

 

Amjad Ali 

Amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 

07800 617139 

 

Kelly Waddoups 

Kelly.waddoups@rsmuk.com 

07528 970405 

 

 

 

Address: 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor 
City Gate East 
Tollhouse Hill 
Nottingham NG1 5FS 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 



Page 1 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR AND CORPORATE 
FINANCE MANAGER

REPORT NO: CFM373

DATE:    30th June 2016

TITLE: Outturn Position 2015-16

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

None

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Cllr Terl Bryant
Executive Member - Resources

CONTACT OFFICER: Daren Turner – Strategic Director Corporate Focus
01476 406301
Email: d.turner@southkesteven.gov.uk
Richard Wyles – Corporate Finance Manager 
01476 406210
Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

INITIAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below:

N/A

Full impact assessment
Required:

No
FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 It is recommended that Members of the Governance and Audit Committee:

1.2 Review and approve the Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated 
appendices for 2015/16, including the movements of the reserves.

1.3 Approve the establishment of the 2015/16 set-a-sides as detailed in the report.

1.4 Approve the Capital slippages from the 2015/16 Capital Programme as detailed 
in the report.

Agenda Item 8

mailto:d.turner@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


Page 2 

1.5 Note the commentary to the outturn report and identify any issues which the 
Committee may wish to make the Executive aware of in relation to the Council’s 
medium term financial planning arrangements.

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

2.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Council’s Revenue and Capital 
Outturn 2015/16 for both General Fund and Housing Revenue Account.  It 
covers:

 Revenue outturn 2015/16

 Capital outturn 2015/16

 Commentary on the revenue and capital outturn

 Commentary and review of reserves and a reserves statement
   

The original base budget for 2015/16 was approved by Council on 2nd March 
2015 for both the capital and revenue budgets including General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account.

2.2 A separate report will be presented to the Committee at their next meeting 
which will provide details of the Statement of Accounts and will be produced in 
compliance with the Account and Audit Regulations 2015.  The Statement of 
Accounts must be published by 30 September 2016 following the audit of the 
statements which is undertaken by external audit (KPMG). 

2.3 A primary source of information for the production of the Statement of Accounts 
is the Revenue and Capital Outturn position.  This report provides a summary of 
the outturn position together with a commentary of significant variances to the 
budgeted position.

3. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

3.1 This report provides Governance and Audit Committee with the detail of the 
Councils outturn position for the financial year 2015/16. In order to comply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards a number of technical accounting 
entries are required to be made which can create significant variances.  The 
report attempts to ensure that, through explanation and presentation, the final 
account figures can be reconciled back to the original budget set by Council in 
March 2015.

3.2 General Fund Revenue Account 2015/16 has an outturn of £15.033M (see 
Table 1) after the proposed year end reserve movements and set-a-sides.  
Detailed explanations of variances follow in section 4.3.



Page 3 

3.3 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has a surplus outturn of £7.275M which will 
be contributing to the HRA reserves specifically the Loan Repayment Reserve 
& Major Repairs Reserve.  Detailed variances are provided in section 5.

3.4 General Fund Capital Programme has an outturn of £2.512M compared with 
an original budget of £8.692M.  Commentary on individual scheme progress is 
contained in section 6 of the report. The programme was revised as part of the 
budget setting process and undergoes regular monitoring to ensure the 
individual projects are delivered within the allocated budgetary sums.  Details of 
the full programme are contained at Appendix C.

3.5 The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) shows an outturn position of 
£5.565M compared to a budget of £7.423M. Commentary on individual scheme 
progress is contained in section 6 of the report. Details of the full programme 
are contained at Appendix C page 2.

4 DETAILS OF REPORT 

4.1 Detailed analysis of the 2015/16 Outturn
The following paragraphs give detailed analysis of the areas:

 General Fund Revenue Services (see also Appendix A)

 Housing Revenue Account (see also Appendix B)

 Capital Expenditure (both Housing and General Fund) (see also Appendix 
C)

 Reserves Statement (see also Appendix D)

4.2 General Fund (Revenue) Variance Analysis 

4.2.1 The priority headings showing budget and outturn are detailed below:

    Table 1 – Draft Outturn

Priority
2015/16 
Original 

Base
£’000

2015/16
Adjusted

Base
£’000

2015/16
Outturn

£’000

2015/16
Variance

(Adjusted)
£’000

1 Growth 963 987 629 (358)

2 Environment 6,104 6,182 6,247 65

3 Culture 2,893 2,941 2,990 49

4 Housing 992 1,102 1,018 (84)

5 Corporate 4,139 4,593 3,932 (661)



Page 4 

6 Workforce Efficiency 
Target*

0 (357) 0 357

7 Capital Charges 0 0 1,257 1,257

8 Accounting Adjustments 419 419

9 Net Total 15,091 15,448 16,492 1,044
10 Removal of Accounting

Adjustments*
(1,834) (1,834)

11 General Fund Total 15,091 15,448 14,658 (790)
12 Set-a-side sums 

2015/16*
76 76

13 Net use of reserves and 
grants to fund 
expenditure

(357) (389) (32)

14 Contribution to reserves* 688 688

15 Restated General Fund 
Total

15,091 15,091 15,033 (58)

Notes*:

Line 6 – the workforce efficiency target has been achieved and is shown within 
the variances at lines 1-5

Line 10 – There are a number of accounting entries that are charged at cost of 
service level (in accordance with accounting requirements shown on lines 7-8) 
but which will be either financed from specific reserves or are non cashable 
entries only such as depreciation.  

Line 12 – services have rolled forward resources into 2016/17 in order to 
complete pieces of work and initiatives that have been planned and been 
unable to commence in the year.    

Line 14 – A breakdown of the contribution to reserves is shown in Table 5 

4.2.2 In accordance with Council’s policy with respect to the reserves the following 
expenditure has been financed from the specific provisions that have been 
established.

Table 2 Set-a-sides (created from 2014/15 outturn)

The budget and outturn for set-a-sides are included in Table 1 in lines 1-5 and 
the under spend position is included in the Restated General Fund Total on 
Line 15. An analysis of the under spend is detailed below:



Page 5 

Description Set-a-Side
£

Outturn
£

1 Waste & Recycling 22,000 1,000
2 Development & Growth 40,000 40,000
3 Accountancy, Finance & Risk 70,000 13,000
4 Venues & Facilities 40,000 26,000
5 Environmental Health 20,000 3,000
6 Spatial & Economic Development 20,000 20,000

Total 212,000 103,000

Notes:

Line 1 – Planned training was undertaken by an alternative provider using free 
NVQ placements which has resulted in an under spend of £21K.

Line 3 – The upgrade of the financial system will now take place in 2016/17 due 
to a supplier delay.

Line 4 – Flooring and decoration works at the office buildings have been 
delayed pending a review of requirements.

Line 5 – Flood prevention works were carried out and funded by a third party.

The under spend of £109k has been transferred to reserves.

4.3 Summary of Key Variances

The following is a summary of the key variances by Council priority heading that 
can be referenced at Appendix A.

4.3.1 Growth

Car Parks – Various car parks across the district have experienced an increase 
in usage which has generated £93K in additional income (7.9% of total income 
budget). The programme of maintenance has continued during the year and 
has delivered a saving of £52K through contractor efficiencies.

Development Management – Income in respect of pre-planning advice has 
increased from the budgeted level of £35K to actual income of £56K as a result 
of a higher number of enquiries from larger development sites.  This income 
offsets the operational costs of providing the service.  Planning application 
income has increased by £233K taking the total income for the year to £1M. 
This is as a result of a number of major applications received in year together 
with 6 applications for wind and solar farms. 

Economic Development – A number of economic development projects have 
been rescheduled resulting in an under spend of £76K. These include business 
and town centre regeneration projects as further research and evidence 
gathering was necessary. 



Page 6 

Markets – There has been a reduction in market toll income at each of the sites 
in year (Grantham £25K, Stamford £11K, Bourne £7K) following an overall 
reduction in the occupation of stalls and pitches (Grantham 22%, Stamford 2%, 
Bourne 8.5%) which is difficult to predict. Grantham market has recently under 
gone a review of stall positioning to improve the customer experience and an 
overaching market strategy has been introduced to support an improvement in 
the trading positions.

Northfields, Market Deeping – Capital works to the industrial unit have been 
undertaken in year which took longer than anticipated. This has led to a delay in 
receiving the increased rental income of £28K. An 18% increase in previous 
income levels is anticipated for 2016/17 following the investment in the asset.

Planning Policy – Additional neighbourhood planning grant (£63K) has been 
received in year. This unallocated grant will be transferred to the 
Neighbourhood Planning reserve to fund a fixed term Neighbourhood Planning 
Officer in future financial years.

4.3.2 Environment

CCTV – Confirmation was received in year from a neighbouring authority that it 
will no longer require the CCTV surveillance service which has resulted in a 
reduction in income totalling £28K. Following a change of criteria for second 
homes funding this can no longer be used for community safety initiatives.

Flood Prevention – Action has been taken to secure funding from third parties 
which has successfully reduced planned expenditure.  A review of a number of 
projects has allowed the spend to be delayed until 2016/17. This has resulted in 
an under spend of £56K.

Footpath Lighting – A programme of electrical testing was undertaken in year 
which identified the need for minor repairs to lighting columns throughout the 
district which has resulted in increased expenditure of £26K.

Health & Safety Enforcement – Legal costs have been recovered from a health 
and safety case in 2014/15 resulting in an additional income of £10k.

Play Areas & Open Spaces – There has been increased grounds maintenance 
requirements throughout the district resulting in increased expenditure of £25K.

Street Cleansing – There are a number of variances that have contributed to 
the overall under spend position. A reduction in the amount incurred in respect 
to fuel costs (£39K), vehicle repair costs (£20K) and an under spend on 
employee costs (£70K) due to vacancies in year for the extended street 
cleansing programme.

Waste Management – Cessation in year of recycling credit receipts from LCC 
has resulted in an under recovery of £382K of income. There has not been any 
increases to the fuel duty rate during 2015/16 which has resulted in an under 
spend of £104K and vehicle repair costs were lower than budgeted (£20K) due 



Page 7 

to improvements in procurement.  Following a review of the motor insurance 
premium recharge this has reduced by £50K. The green waste service has 
seen an additional 907 households utilising the service, representing a 3% 
increase. This has resulted in additional income of £37K. The bulky waste 
collection service has also generated additional income of £14K.

4.3.3 Culture

Arts and Events – The primary objective of this budget is to promote larger 
events outside of the arts centres. Even though an increased programme of 
shows were held in 2015/16, the associated costs were also higher and this 
resulted in the net income from these events reducing to a 4% surplus from a 
30% budgeted level, resulting in an over spend of £20K.

Grantham Meres Leisure Centre – Responsive premises maintenance costs 
have been incurred (£30K) which will be met from the Maintenance Fund. Grant 
income of £146K has been received to fund the works undertaken on the new 
3G football pitch. The repayment of the capital works for the gym extension 
from the leisure provider has been re-profiled resulting in an under recovery for 
2015/16 of £37K, however this will be recovered in future financial years. 

Miscellaneous Property – Updated timings of the St Peter’s Hill project has 
resulted in budgeted rental income of £19K not being received in year and 
additional revenue costs that could not be capitalised of £148K. Expenditure of 
£30K has been incurred to improve the former museum premises at Broad 
Street, Stamford (funded by the Maintenance Fund) to allow it to be used as 
rentable premises which commenced in August 2015. Rental income of £30K 
per annum is forecast to be achieved from 2016/17 

Sports Stadium - A review was undertaken to assess the football club’s use of 
the Sports Stadium which has resulted in an increased recharge to the facility. 
This increase has been partly offset by a reduction in grounds maintenance 
requirements in year has resulted in an under spend of £35K.

4.3.4 Corporate

Benefits Administration – Benefit assessor vacancies have resulted in an under 
spend of £34K following a reduction in the number of claims being handled.  A 
total of £39K of Council Tax benefit over payments has been recovered during 
the year. This has been partly offset by an increase in bad debt provision of 
£199K to reflect an increase in benefit overpayments although this is set at a 
prudent level and will be reviewed.

Building Control Partnership – The partnership arrangement with Rushcliffe 
Borough Council has achieved a surplus of £2K in 2015/16 which has been 
credited to the trading account reserve. A new reserve for £37K for set up costs 
has been created for scanning and health & safety equipment. 

Council Tax Administration & Enforcement – Costs have been incurred for 
agency staff (£12K) covering temporary resourcing issues.  Other factors 



Page 8 

contributing to the variance are the writing off of unrecoverable debt of £28K 
and an increase in support costs of £22K.

Emergency Planning – A contribution has been made to LCC (£8K) to support 
the Prevent Strategy which works towards the prevention of terrorism. This 
payment will be reclaimed in 2016/17 from Central Government.

NDR Administration & Enforcement – Increased costs have been paid in year in 
respect of external consultants (£24k) to assist in the identification of changes 
to rateable values of commercial premises in the district.  The outcome of this 
work has resulted in an increase in the total rateable value by £239K.

Register of Electors – Grant funding received in year of (£66K) is to be 
transferred to a new Individual Electoral Registration reserve for use in future 
years.

Legal Services – An under spend of £33K has occurred in year due to a vacant 
support officer post and the temporary reduced hours resourcing of a vacant 
team leader role. Additional income has been received (£13K) due to 
successful litigations. 

Property Management – Income has been received (£32K) in respect of a 
project officer secondment to a County Council for 9 months. There is an under 
spend of £143k on employee costs due to vacancies during a restructure of the 
business area which took place in year. A General Fund asset review continues 
into 2016/17 and a set-a-side for £22K has been requested to fund this.

Waste & Recycling Management – £50K of income has been received for 
providing the County Council’s supplementary waste collection service in 
Stamford. The operational costs for this service are included within the Waste 
Management line which offset this income stream.

4.3.5   Special Expenses Areas

Stamford Special Expense Area – Reduced grounds maintenance requirements 
in year has resulted in an under spend of £12K.  Under spends in relation to the 
Special Expense Areas are transferred into respective SEA reserve at year end. 



Page 9 

5. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT – Variance analysis 

5.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (Appendix B) is a 'ring fenced' account 
and relates to the Council's Landlord functions.  Revenue raised by rents and 
service charges must be sufficient to match expenditure.   A summary table is 
detailed below:

Table 3

  2015/16 2015/16 2015/16

 Adjusted  Outturn 
 

Variance 

  Base
 

Adjusted 
  £'000 £'000  £'000 
   
  INCOME  
1  Dwelling Rents (25,552) (25,600) (48)
2  Non Dwelling Rents (297) (297) 0
3  Charges for Services and Facilities (566) (587) (21)
4  Other Income (63) (69) (6)
     
5  TOTAL INCOME (26,478) (26,553) (75)
   
  EXPENDITURE  
6  Repair and Maintenance 8,035 7,300 (735)
7  Supervision and Management - General 2,564 2,527 (37)
8  Supervision and Management - Special 1,093 1,008 (85)
9  HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs 357 359 2

10  Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets * 2,778 7,398 4,620
11  Revaluation Losses (Gains) * 0 (5,842) (5,842)
12  Debt Management Expenses 25 34 9
13  Provision for bad debts 517 41 (476)
14  HRA Internal Insurance 0 47 47
  
       

15  TOTAL EXPENDITURE 15,369 12,872 (2,497)
   

16  NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (11,109) (13,681) (2,572)

(Full details of the HRA revenue summary are shown at Appendix B)

5.2 Dwelling rents and other income – the performance of the collection of rents 
has been sustained during this financial year (98.57% collected compared with 
the target of 98.3%). There was an overall over recovery of dwelling rents of 
£48K compared to the budget due to two factors. The average actual void 
percentage rate was again lower (1.2%) compared to the budgeted estimate 
(1.5%) which resulted in an additional £80K income.  However this was offset 
by the write off’s during the year of £32K.

  
5.3 Repairs and maintenance – this budget covers expenditure on a range of 

work areas including insulation, painting, disabled adaptations, asbestos, gas 
servicing and maintenance as well as reactive and void repairs. The under 



Page 10 

spend is mainly due to work not able to be undertaken in 2015/16 as result of 
delays in scheduling works with contractors and site surveys. Set a Sides 
(£373K) have been proposed to enable some of these works to be completed 
in 2016/17 as detail in table 6.

5.4 Supervision and Management (Special) – this budget covers services 
relating to some but not all HRA tenants. It includes homelessness dwellings, 
sheltered housing schemes and grounds maintenance. The under spend of 
£47K is due to lower utility costs at the sheltered housing schemes.

6.   CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

6.1 During 2015/16 the Council's total capital investment was £8.077M (details are   
provided at Appendix C). A summary of the expenditure is set out at table 4 and 
is compared to the updated base programme.

Table 4

Corporate Area
2015/16 
Updated 

Base

£’000

2015/16
Outturn

£’000

2015/16
Variance 

£’000

1 Growth 6,099 573 (5,526)

2 Housing 1,043 460 (583)

3 Culture 460 615 155

4

5

6

Environment

Corporate

Other (including previous year 
schemes)

752

338

0

622

156

86

(130)

(182)

86

7 General Fund Sub Total 8,692 2,512 (6,180)

8 Housing Revenue Account 7,423 5,565 (1,858)

9 Total Capital Programme 16,115 8,077 (8.038)



Page 11 

6.2 Capital Programme - The capital programme for 2015/16 was agreed by 
Council at its meeting on 2nd March 2015 and additional slippage identified 
during closedown 2014/15. The General Fund outturn position of £2.512M 
represents a variance of (£6.180M) compared with the updated base

6.3 Variance Analysis – General Fund (Appendix C)

Growth

6.3.1 St. Peter’s Hill development – following additional specialist advice being 
received a revised approach has been identified as part of the over-arching 
ambition of creating a highly attractive sub-regional leisure destination and 
cultural offer in Grantham  Therefore additional slippage of £189K is proposed 
to be moved into the 2016/17 capital programme.

6.3.2 Strategic Land Acquisition – There were no sites identified for purchase in 
2015/16 leading to an under spend of £900K. This budget is no longer 
required as the Council has allocated £5M for Property Investment in 2016/17 
as part of its Commercial Investment Strategy.

6.3.3 Servicing Land At Vantage Park – The sale is proceeding but there are 
conditions which have delayed the completion. The budget (£220K) has been 
slipped into 2016/17.

Housing

6.3.4    Housing Grant Assistance – The under spend of £72K was due to the volume 
of applications being lower than previously anticipated.  

6.3.5 Disabled Facilities Grants – Applications are dependent on an assessment     
carried out by an occupational therapist at the County Council, these are then   
processed by the Lincolnshire Home Independence Agency. The reduced 
number of referrals for applications has resulted in an under spend of £138K.

    
Culture

6.3.6 The over spend in culture relates to two schemes, the installation of Astroturf 
pitch at Meres Leisure Centre £144K funded through grant funding.  The 
second scheme is a new PA System (23K) installed at the Guildhall Arts 
Centre this was funded from in year capital underspends.

.  Environment

6.3.7 There is an under spend on wheelie bins of £23K due to delivery delays by the 
supplier. This is proposed to be slipped into 2016/17. There was a saving of 
£18K on vehicle purchases. The Wyndham Park Grantham footpath 
improvements were completed in year (£22K) and street lighting schemes 
(£64K). Both were moved to revenue expenditure at year end but were funded 
from a direct revenue contribution.



Page 12 

Corporate

6.3.8 The ICT infrastructure budget (£144K) has been delayed in 2015/16 due to 
programming of works it is proposed this budget will be slipped into 2016/17.  
The scheme included under the heading of the Customer Access Strategy 
(£28K) has been delayed due to timing of projects and is proposed to be 
slipped into 2016/17.  

Other Schemes

6.3.9 These are schemes fully funded from section 106 monies and are Deepings 
community centre improvements (£13K), Deepings public toilets renovation 
(£48K) and play equipment at the new build housing scheme at Lincoln Road, 
Stamford (£25K).

Summary of Capital Outturn

6.3.10 The additional slippage amounts (in addition to slippage previously approved 
by Council) have been identified for inclusion into the 2016/17 General Fund 
capital programme:- 

  St. Peter’s Hill Development Project £189K
  Wheelie Bin Replacements £23K
 ICT Infrastructure £144K
 Customer Access Strategy £28K

6.4 Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme – the updated base for the 
HRA capital programme for 2015/16 was £7.423M and the outturn was 
£5.565M. This represents a variance of (£1.858M) compared to the updated 
base.  

6.5        Variance Analysis HRA (Appendix C)

Purchase of Land and Buildings

6.5.1 Construction of a road for access at Twenty village near Bourne - There is 
proposed slippage of £11K into 2016/17 in order to fully evaluate tenders 
before the completion of the road.

6.5.2 Purchase Of Strategic Land – The only expenditure incurred was for the buy 
back of the leasehold flat (£84K). This resulted in an under spend of £114K 
which has been slipped into the 2016/17 stock growth and acquisitions 
programme. 



Page 13 

New Build Properties

6.5.3 The new build capital programme has seen the completion and letting of 20 
new dwellings at Lincoln Road, Stamford. The under spend of £1.060M is due 
to delays in evaluating new sites for development and in progressing the 
designs. Proposed additional slippage to the budgeted slippage of £112K is 
required to enable continuation of the 3 new schemes.

Kitchen & Bathroom Refurbishments

6.5.4 There was an under spend of £157K due to delays in completing the 
programme of works however during 2015/16 232 kitchens and 165 
bathrooms have been installed in Council properties.  The underspend is 
proposed to be slipped into 2016/17 to enable the remaining properties to be 
done.

External Wall Insulation

6.5.5 This scheme was under spent by £115K. Majority of works identified for 
2015/16 were completed with the exception of a few dispersed properties 
which will be completed during 2016/17 programme.  Slippage of £38K is 
proposed to be utilised on pre-surveys/evaluation of properties in the 2016/17 
programme.

   Fencing

6.5.6 A fencing replacement scheme has been introduced and during the year over 
870m of fencing was completed in year but the expenditure was transferred to 
revenue during 2015/16 due to required accounting adjustments this has led to 
an under spend of £120k on the capital budget.

IT Software

6.5.7 The vehicle management system (£50K) will now be implemented in 2016/17 
following delays to the project and the budget has been slipped. The upgrade 
to Opti-Time Software has been completed with a saving of £23K. The repairs 
finder scheme (£20K) is no longer progressing due to CRM project.

 Purchase of Vehicles

6.5.8 The purchase of new vehicles has been undertaken although the delivery of 
them took place in April 2016 and so the expenditure will be incurred during 
2016/17.  Therefore it is proposed the budget is slipped (£125K) into 2016/17. 

6.5.9  The additional slippage amounts have been identified for inclusion into the 
2016/17 HRA capital programme:- 

  Construction of access road £11K
  New build properties £112K
  Kitchen & bathroom refurbishments £157K
  External wall insulation £38K



Page 14 

  Repairs vehicles £125K

 
7. COMMENTARY ON BALANCES AND RESERVES 

7.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of the 
usage and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial 
statements reflect the proposed use of these and specific details of each 
balance and reserve are set out below and detailed at Appendix D.

7.2   Specific Revenue Reserves

7.2.1   Insurance Fund  £350K

The insurance fund provides cover to meet unforeseen costs relating to 
insurance claims over and above the provisions made in year as part of 
managing the ‘in house risk’ with an increased self-insured strategy. During 
the year £51K has been used to fund claims and insurance premium.   

7.2.2   Pension Reserves £1.51M

The current employees reserve provides for potential capital costs of any 
future early retirements and also helps to protect the Council from large 
changes in Council Tax resulting from unanticipated rises in the employer's 
contribution rate following future triennial valuations.  The level of the reserve 
will reduce in future years to fund the pension payment reducing the Council 
contribution rate from 21.1% to 17%.  This decision has had a positive impact 
on the revenue budgets for the same period.

7.2.3   Service Improvement Reserves £6.18M

The Service Improvement Reserves have been used in accordance with their 
stated policies during the year.  The committee is asked to note the  
movements which they will approve as part of the outturn position as detailed 
in Appendix D. These movements have been allocated for specific funding to 
directly support the delivery of key corporate projects.  In addition, the Council 
has received a further £3.343M for New Homes Bonus income to further boost 
funding priority services.  The use of this will be reviewed as part of the 
medium term financial strategy.

7.2.4   Special Expense Area (SEA) Reserve £161K

This reserve is utilised to financially support transactions and future spending 
proposals in respect of the SEAs.  The individual closing balances are 
Deepings SEA (£1K), Bourne SEA £9K, Grantham SEA £86K, Langtoft SEA 
£4K and Stamford SEA £63K.
The contribution to reserves are detailed below which Committee are asked to   
approve; 



Page 15 

Table 5 – Contributions to Reserves

Description £

1 ICT Reserve 100,000
2 Transformation Programme 100,000
3 Maintenance Reserve 100,000
4 Neighbourhood Planning Grant 63,000
5 Capacity Funding 43,000
6 Tourism 50,000
7 Events & Festivals Reserve 20,000
8 Building Control – Set up 

costs/Surplus
39,000

9 Individual Electoral Registration 66,000
10 LAMS Reserve 67,000
11 Special Expense Area Reserves 40,000

Total 688,000

7.2.5   Service Specific Funds – Set-asides

In order to assist services to deliver specific projects which overrun the 
financial year a number of service specific funds have been created following 
the closure of the 2015/16 financial year.  Specifically these are:

Table 6 – Set a sides

Service Areas
Set-Aside
 Amount 

£’000
General Fund

Venues & Facilities
Property Development
Spatial & Economic Development
People & Organisational Development

HRA

Property Works

11,000
22,000
10,000
33,000

373,000

Total 449,000



Page 16 

7.3    Capital Reserves

7.3.1   General Fund - Capital Reserve - £2.008M

The General Fund capital reserve is used to assist with the funding of the 
capital programme.  During 2015/16 £70K was used to fund the capital 
programme. As a result of a reduced revenue contribution being required to 
fund the 2015/16 capital programme, it is proposed that a further contribution 
of £1,000K is made to the reserve in order to provide a suitable level of 
reserve to fund future capital projects.  

  
7.3.2   Useable Capital Receipts Reserve £2.540M

This reserve is one of the primary sources of funding the General Fund capital 
programme. From a financial perspective it is prudent to fund the capital 
programme from internal borrowing rather than incur the additional costs of 
external borrowing. During the year the Council has received £823K in 
receipts following sales of the residential accommodation at Bourne Core Area 
and utilised £1.696M of the reserve to contribute towards the funding of the 
capital programme.

7.3.3   Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) £6.775M

This reserve has been credited with £6.117M as the notional Major Repairs 
Allowance to fund its capital expenditure and been charged £4.726M to fund 
capital items for the 2015/16 programme. This will continue to be the primary 
financing for the HRA Capital Programme.

7.3.4 Capital Receipts Reserve (HRA) £1.780M

The Council has established a capital receipts reserve where the Right To Buy 
sale receipts are allocated. During the year £839K has been used to contribute 
towards the new build programme and £850K payment has been made to 
Government  in respect of RTB pooling. This reserve will continue to be 
utilised to contribute to the provision of affordable housing and the provision of 
additional Council housing stock.

7.4   Working Balances

7.4.1 The General Fund working balance 

At the end of the financial year stands at £1.912M.  This is equivalent to 12.7% 
of net original base budget for 2015/16 (net operating expenditure) and is in 
accordance with the Council’s current policy which is set at 10-15%. The 
purpose of this working balance is to ensure there is sufficient financial 
resource available in order to meet unforeseen events during the course of the 
financial year.  



Page 17 

7.4.2 The HRA working balance 

As at 31 March 2016 the working balance is £4.823M.  This balance serves 
the same purpose as the General Fund working balance.  In accordance with 
the HRA business plan it is proposed that the working balance is reduced to 
represent 10% of operating expenditure costs and contribution has been made 
to the loan repayment reserve in preparation for the £25M maturity payment in 
2019/20.  As part of the year end review it is proposed to transfer £373k to 
increase the Service Specific Fund to bring the balance on the reserve to 
£879k.  This will be used to fund repair and maintenances expenditure that 
was delayed during 2015/16.

8. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 N/A

9. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Resource implications are included in the report.

10. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA
           QUALITY)

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
N/A

11. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

11.1 N/A

12. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

12.1 N/A

13.1 COMMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

13.1 Financial commentary is provided throughout the report.

14. COMMENT OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
 
14.1  The terms of reference of the Governance and Audit Committee require the 

committee to consider for approval the annual revenue and capital outturn 
report.

15. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICE MANAGER

15.1 These are included within the commentary relevant to service variance   
    analysis.



Page 18 

16. APPENDICES:

Appendix A - General Fund Revenue Outturn 2015/16

Appendix B - Housing Revenue Account Outturn 2015/16

Appendix C - Capital Programme Outturn 2015/16

Appendix D - Reserves Statement as at 31st March 2016



SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND ESTIMATES

2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 1

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Original Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1 Growth 963 987 629 (334) (358)
2 Environment    6,104 6,182 6,247 143 65
3 Culture 2,893 2,941 2,990 97 49
4 Housing 992 1,102 1,018 26 (84)
5 Corporate 4,139 4,593 3,932 (207) (661)
6 Workforce Efficiency Target 0 (357) 0 0 357
7 Capital Charges 0 0 1,257 1,257 1,257
8 Accounting Adjustments (IAS19) 0 0 419 419 419

9  TOTAL SERVICE COSTS 15,091 15,448 16,492 1,401 1,044

10 Precepts of Local Precepting Authorities 1,540 1,540 1,529 (11) (11)
11 Depreciation and Impairment charged to Revenue Accounts (2,867) (2,867) (3,313) (446) (446)
12 Gains or losses on disposals 0 0 128 128 128
13 Movement in fair value of investment property 0 0 (123) (123) (123)
14 Net movement on Pension interest costs and Return on assets 0 0 1,283 1,283 1,283
15 Other operating income 0 0 0 0 0
16 Interest and Investment Income (168) (168) (326) (158) (158)
17 Interest Payable 20 20 40 20 20

18 NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 13,616 13,973 15,710 2,094 1,737

19 Net movement in General Fund Specific Reserves (534) (534) (855) (321) (321)
20 Revaluation Gains/ (losses) (559) (559) (559)
21 Amortisation of Intangible Assets 0 0 (89) (89) (89)
22 Revenue Contribution to Capital 1,202 1,202 0 (1,202) (1,202)
23 Accounting adjustment for holiday and maternity pay 0 0 3 3 3
24 Revenue Expenditure Financed by Capital Through Statute 0 0 120 120 120
25 Minimum Revenue Provision 165 165 166 1 1

26 AMOUNT TO BE MET FROM GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND
LOCAL TAXPAYERS 14,449 14,806 14,496 47 (310)

27 Council Tax Income (7,683) (7,683) (7,685) (2) (2)
28 Revenue Support Grant (2,719) (2,719) (2,612) 107 107
29 Council Tax Freeze Grant (69) (69) (69) 0 0
30 Business Rates (net) (2,717) (2,717) (3,110) (393) (393)
31 Pooling Gain (248) (248) 0 248 248
32 S31 Business Rates Grant (1,068) (1,068) (1,058) 10 10
33 New Homes Bonus 0 0 (3,343) (3,343) (3,343)
34 Other Grants (62) (62) (79) (17) (17)
35 Collection Fund Deficit 117 117 117 0 0

36 (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT IN YEAR (0) 357 (3,343) (3,343) (3,700)

General Fund Revenue Balances
37 (Increase)/Reduction in working balance (0) 357 (3,343) (3,343) (3,700)
38 Transfer to Local Priorities Reserve 0 0 3,343 3,343 3,343
39 Balance at Beginning of Year 1,912 1,912 1,912 0 0

40 BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 1,912 2,269 1,912 0 (357)



GROWTH
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 2

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Detail Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Adjusted Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Ref Front Line Services

1 Alma Park, Grantham 10 10 9 (1) (10)%
2 Bus Stations 63 63 61 (2) (3)%
3 Car Parks (578) (456) (599) (143) 31 %
4 Conservation 91 90 123 33 37 %
5 Development Management 403 398 209 (189) (47)%
6 Economic Development 723 683 607 (76) (11)%
7 Graham Hill Way, Bourne (26) (26) (27) (1) 4 %
8 Hollis Road, Grantham (8) (8) (3) 5 (63)%
9 Markets 42 40 89 49 123 %

10 Mowbeck Way, Grantham (12) (12) (15) (3) 25 %
11 Northfields, Market Deeping (395) (395) (366) 29 (7)%
12 Planning Policy 466 416 339 (77) (19)%
13 Public Conveniences 140 141 157 16 11 %
14 Street Numbering & Naming 44 43 45 2 5 %

15 NET GENERAL FUND CHARGE 963 987 629 (358) (36)%



ENVIRONMENT
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 3

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Detail Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Adjusted Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Ref Front Line Services

1 Air Pollution 72 70 54 (16) (23)%
2 Animal Health & Welfare 3 4 2 (2) (50)%
3 Awarded Watercourses 34 58 52 (6) (10)%
4 Closed Burial Grounds 52 52 48 (4) (8)%
5 Closed Circuit Television 205 195 281 86 44 %
6 Community Activities 120 91 94 3 3 %
7 Community Safety 162 150 153 3 2 %
8 Control of Dogs 56 57 51 (6) (11)%
9 Cycle Centre & Cycleways 8 13 17 4 31 %

10 Enforcement 96 94 84 (10) (11)%
11 Flood Prevention 100 115 45 (70) (61)%
12 Food Safety 214 207 194 (13) (6)%
13 Footway Lighting 233 233 268 35 15 %
14 Gambling Licensing 0 0 0 0 0 %
15 Grantham Canal 19 26 20 (6) (23)%
16 Hackney Carriage Registration 0 (7) (4) 3 (43)%
17 Health & Safety Enforcement 92 93 83 (10) (11)%
18 Health & Well-being 3 4 1 (3) (75)%
19 Infectious Disease Control 36 37 35 (2) (5)%
20 Leisure Premises (10) (10) (11) (1) 10 %
21 Licensing Enforcement 2 2 2 0 0 %
22 Liquor Licensing 0 (5) 0 5 (100)%
23 Local Licences 0 (1) (1) 0 0 %
24 Noise Control 73 73 68 (5) (7)%
25 Partnerships 32 32 31 (1) (3)%
26 Play Areas & Open Spaces 290 303 348 45 15 %
27 Public Health 157 154 148 (6) (4)%
28 Street Furniture 28 28 21 (7) (25)%
29 Street Scene 1,159 1,183 1,039 (144) (12)%
30 Waste Management 2,410 2,473 2,604 131 5 %
31 Water Quality 30 30 27 (3) (10)%

32 NET GENERAL FUND CHARGE 5,676 5,754 5,754 0 0 %



CULTURE
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 4

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Detail Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Adjusted Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Ref Front Line Services

1 Arts and Events 38 31 52 21 68 %
2 Bourne Corn Exchange 61 65 68 3 5 %
3 Bourne Leisure Centre 98 98 100 2 2 %
4 Deepings Leisure Centre 282 282 280 (2) (1)%
5 Fairs 0 1 (9) (10) (1,000)%
6 Grantham Meres Leisure Centre 646 661 587 (74) (11)%
7 Guildhall Arts Centre 641 668 645 (23) (3)%
8 Leisure Grants & Loans 0 0 (7) (7) 100%
9 Miscellaneous Property 48 63 284 221 351 %

10 Sports Stadium 143 143 183 40 28 %
11 Stamford Arts Centre 579 572 548 (24) (4)%
12 Stamford Leisure Centre 201 201 184 (17) (8)%

13 NET GENERAL FUND CHARGE 2,737 2,785 2,915 130 5 %



HOUSING
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 5

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Detail Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Adjusted Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Ref Front Line Services

1 Citizens Advice Bureau 60 60 60 0 0 %
2 Homelessness 605 562 570 8 1 %
3 Housing Benefits Administration 110 262 203 (59) (23)%
4 Land Charges 0 6 (6) (12) (200)%
5 Private Sector Landlords 217 212 191 (21) (10)%
6 Travellers Rest Caravan Site 0 0 0 0 0 %

7 NET GENERAL FUND CHARGE 992 1,102 1,018 (84) (8)%



CORPORATE
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 6

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Detail Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Adjusted Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Ref Front Line Services
1 Benefits Administration (65) (343) (215) 128 (37)%
2 Building Control Partnership 84 83 69 (14) (17)%
3 Council Tax Admin & Enforcement 560 562 625 63 11 %
4 Corporate Costs 1,016 1,411 1,426 15 1 %
5 Dangerous Structures 1 1 14 13 1,300 %
6 Democratic Representation 915 917 889 (28) (3)%
7 District Elections 142 142 150 8 6 %
8 Drainage Rates 639 639 640 1 0 %
9 Emergency Planning 44 39 50 11 28 %

10 Insurance* 0 0 58 58 100%
11 NDR Admin & Enforcement (13) (4) 21 25 (625)%
12 Non-District Elections 0 0 0 0 0 %
13 Pension Costs* 77 77 67 (10) (13)%
14 Register of Electors 290 277 213 (64) (23)%
15 Reputation, Consultation & Communication 408 404 383 (21) (5)%
16 Treasury Management 41 41 40 (1) (2)%

17 Front Line Services 4,139 4,246 4,430 184 4 %

Support Services
18 Asset & Facilities Management 568 0 0 0 100%
19 Communications Support 61 60 56 (4) (7)%
20 Corporate Management 696 1,213 1,168 (45) (4)%
21 Counter Fraud 0 84 73 (11) (13)%
22 Customer Services 822 790 748 (42) (5)%
23 Democratic Services 135 121 118 (3) (2)%
24 Development & Growth Admin 78 84 80 (4) (5)%
25 Facilities Management 0 243 247 4 2 %
26 Financial Services 861 942 895 (47) (5)%
27 ICT 1,110 1,010 948 (62) (6)%
28 Income Recovery Service 30 38 38 0 0 %
29 Legal Services 247 229 163 (66) (29)%
30 Leisure & Amenities 133 162 149 (13) (8)%
31 People & Organisational Development 284 233 202 (31) (13)%
32 Performance & Project Management 153 158 155 (3) (2)%
33 Property Management 0 275 76 (199) (72)%
34 Strategic Leadership 618 582 579 (3) (1)%
35 Waste & Recycling Management 351 300 235 (65) (22)%
36 Recharged to Services (6,147) (6,177) (5,930) 247 (4)%
37 Under/ (Over) Allocation of Support Services 0 347 (498) (845) (244)%

38 NET GENERAL FUND CHARGE 4,139 4,593 3,932 (661) (14)%
*Accounting adjustment reversed out on the GF balance



SPECIAL EXPENSE AREAS
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix A

Page 7

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Detail Original Adjusted Outturn Variance Variance

Base Base Adjusted Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Ref Front Line Services

1 Bourne Special Expense Area 27 27 25 (2) (7)%
2 Deepings Special Expense Area 15 15 14 (1) (7)%
3 Grantham Special Expense Area 432 432 434 2 0 %
4 Langtoft Special Expense Area 20 20 20 0 0 %
5 Stamford Special Expense Area 90 90 75 (15) (17)%

6 NET GENERAL FUND CHARGE 584 584 568 (16) (3)%



Housing Revenue Account Summary
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix B

Page 1

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Adjusted Outturn Variance

Base Adjusted
£'000 £'000 £'000

INCOME
1 Dwelling Rents (25,552) (25,600) (48)
2 Non Dwelling Rents (297) (297) 0
3 Charges for Services and Facilities (566) (587) (21)
4 Other Income (63) (69) (6)

5 TOTAL INCOME (26,478) (26,553) (75)

EXPENDITURE
6 Repair and Maintenance 8,035 7,300 (735)
7 Supervision and Management - General 2,564 2,527 (37)
8 Supervision and Management - Special 1,093 1,008 (85)
9 HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs 357 359 2

10 Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets * 2,778 7,398 4,620
11 Revaluation Losses (Gains) * 0 (5,842) (5,842)
12 Debt Management Expenses 25 34 9
13 Provision for bad debts 517 41 (476)
14 HRA Internal Insurance 0 47 47

 
15 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 15,369 12,872 (2,497)

16 NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (11,109) (13,681) (2,572)
 

17 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 3,242 3,183 (59)
18 Interest and Investment Income (181) (222) (41)
19 Investment Property Inc & Exp 0 119 119
20 Return on Pension Assets * 0 396 396
21 Net Gain on sale of HRA Assets * 0 (1,140) (1,140)
22 Capital receipts pooling * 0 850 850

23 DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR ON THE HRA (8,048) (10,495) (2,447)

24 MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE
25 (Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 8,048 10,495 2,447

26 Net charges made on Retirement Benefits (IAS19) 0 1,154 1,154

27 Employer's contribution to Pension Fund 0 (563) (563)

28 Net Gain on sale of HRA Assets 0 (1,140) (1,140)

29 Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve (Depn less MRA) 0 (3,565) (3,565)

30 Contribution to loan repayment reserve (2,630) (2,630) 0

31 Contribution from/to HRA service specific reserve 0 (624) (624)

32 Other Reserve Movement (50) 50 100

33 Reapyment of Principal (3,222) (3,222) 0

34 Capital receipts pooling 0 850 850

35 Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure Financed from MRR (3,339) 4,694 8,033

36 Revaluation (Gains)/Losses 0 (5,704) (5,704)

37 Depreciation of other land & buildings 0 243 243

38 Other Adjustments 0 1 1

39 Housing Revenue Account balance at start of Year 4,432 4,784 352

40 Housing Revenue Account Balance at end of year 3,239 4,823 1,584

* Accounting adjustment reversed out on the HRA balance



General Fund Capital Programme
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix C

Page 1

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Description Estimate Updated Forecast Outturn Variance Original Additional Total

Base Base Outturn Slippage Slippage Slippage
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Growth
1 Town Centre Projects - St Peters Hill Development 4,595 4,671 0 0 (4,671) 4,482 189 4,671
2 Shop Front Scheme 36 36 36 36 0 0 0 0
3 Servicing Land At Vantage Park 220 220 0 0 (220) 220 0 220
4 Strategic Land Acquisition 900 900 0 0 (900) 0 0 0
5 Town Centre Projects - BCA fit out of retail units 0 77 80 80 3 0 0 0
6 Park Air Systems Extension 210 195 457 457 262 0 0 0

5,961 6,099 573 573 (5,526) 4,702 189 4,891
Housing

7 Housing Grant Assistance 294 170 93 98 (72) 0 0 0
8 Disabled Facilities Grant 376 500 378 362 (138) 0 0 0
9 Earlesfield Lane Grantham Development 373 373 0 0 (373) 0 0 0

1,043 1,043 471 460 (583) 0 0 0
Culture
Provision for Existing Assets

10 Deepings Leisure Centre - Distribution boards & LV panel 0 11 17 17 6 0 0 0
11 Low Voltage panel replacement - Grantham Council offices 0 25 0 0 (25) 25 0 25
12 Guildhall Arts Centre - Replace outside lighting 0 12 16 16 4 0 0 0
13 Deepings Leisure Centre - New Heater 12 12 10 0 (12) 0 0 0
14 Meres Leisure Centre - Gymnasium extension 400 400 400 400 0 0 0 0
15 Grantham Meres Leisure Centre astroturf replacement 0 0 175 144 144 0 0 0
16 Stamford Arts Centre - Theatre Seating 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
17 Guildhall Arts Centre - PA System 0 0 23 23 23 0 0 0
18 Meres Leisure Centre Equipment 0 0 21 15 15 0 0 0

412 460 662 615 155 25 0 25
Environment

19 Wheelie Bin Replacements 109 109 86 86 (23) 0 23 23
20 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 554 554 536 536 (18) 0 0 0
21 Wyndham Park - Footpath And Kerb Improvements 25 25 22 0 (25) 0 0 0
22 Replacement lighting programme 64 64 64 0 (64) 0 0 0

752 752 708 622 (130) 0 23 23
Corporate

23 ICT Infrastructure 222 105 45 41 (64) 0 64 64
24 Redesign Of The Website And Intranet 0 10 6 0 (10) 0 0 0
25 Customer Relationship & Document Management Systems 0 195 201 115 (80) 0 80 80
26 Customer Access Strategy 28 28 0 0 (28) 0 28 28

250 338 252 156 (182) 0 172 172
Capital Expenditure Funded By S106 Agreements

27 Deepings Community Centre Improvements 0 0 13 13 13 0 0 0
28 Market Deeping Public Toilets Renovation 0 0 48 48 48 0 0 0
29 Play Equipment, Lincoln Rd Stamford 0 0 25 25 25 0 0 0

0 0 86 86 86 0 0 0

30 TOTAL GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 8,418 8,692 2,752 2,512 (6,180) 4,727 384 5,111



General Fund Capital Programme
Financing Statement 2015/16

Appendix  C

Page 2

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Description Estimate Updated Outturn

Base Base
£'000 £'000

General Fund

Growth 5,961 6,099 573 -
Housing 1,043 1,043 460
Culture 412 460 615
Environment 752 752 622
Corporate 250 338 242

TOTAL -General Fund 8,418 8,692 2,512

GENERAL FUND FINANCED BY:

Supported Borrowing 0 0 0

Unsupported Borrowing 0 0 0

Specific Reserve - Capital 1,253 1,253 0

Usable Capital Receipts 4,320 4,320 1,696

Capital Grants and Contributions
     - Disabled Facility Grant 376 376 376
     - Regional Housing Allowance 17 17 0

Direct Revenue Financing
     - Cemetery works 5 5 0
     - Wyndham Park Water Fountain- SEA 5 5 0
     - S106 Monies 0 0 79
     - Transformation Reserve 116 116 115
     - New Homes Bonus 1,124 1,398 -
     - Reserve Funding 85
     - Contribution from Revenue 1,202 1,202 161

TOTAL - GF CAPITAL PROGRAMME 8,418 8,692 2,512



HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix C

Page 3

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Description Estimate Updated Forecast Outturn Variance Original Updated Total

Base Base Outturn Slippage Slippage Slippage
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Purchase of land & buildings
1    Purchase Of Land For Creation Of Road 0 13 2 0 (13) 0 11 11
2    Purchase Of Strategic Land & Property Acquisitions 198 198 84 84 (114) 114 0 114

198 211 86 84 (127) 114 11 125
Energy Efficiency Initiatives

3    Central Heating, Ventilation And Boiler Replacements 1,050 1,050 1,030 1,039 (11) 0 0 0
4    LED Lighting To Sheltered Housing Communal Areas 275 275 275 275 0 0 0 0

1,325 1,325 1,305 1,314 (11) 0 0 0
Refurbishment and Improvement

5    New Build Properties 1,800 1,800 607 740 (1,060) 948 112 1060
6    Re-Roofing (Including Chimneys) 1,278 1,278 1,283 1,333 55 0 0 0
7    Re-Wiring 250 250 215 189 (61) 0 0 0
8    Kitchen And Bathroom Refurbishments 1,050 1,050 837 893 (157) 0 157 157
9    Replacement Door Programme 40 40 1 1 (39) 0 0 0

10    External Wall Insulation 1,010 1,010 972 895 (115) 0 38 38
11    Installation Of Air Source Heat Pumps 50 74 69 69 (5) 0 0 0
12    Fencing 120 120 0 0 (120)

5,598 5,622 3,984 4,120 (1,502) 948 307 1255
IT Software

13    Vehicle Management System For Repairs 50 50 0 0 (50) 50 0 50
14    Repairs Finder 20 20 0 0 (20) 0 0 0
15    Upgrade Opti-Time Software 55 55 43 32 (23) 0 0 0

125 125 43 32 (93) 50 0 50
Purchase Of Vehicles

16    Repairs Vehicles 125 140 15 15 (125) 0 125 125
125 140 15 15 (125) 0 125 125

17 TOTAL - HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 7,371 7,423 5,433 5,565 (1,858) 1,112 443 1,555



Appendix C

Page 4

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Description Estimate Updated Outturn

Outturn Base
£'000 £'000 £'000

HRA FINANCED BY:

Major Repair Reserve 5,779 5,779 4,726
Revenue contribution 1,592 1,644 839

TOTAL - HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 7,371 7,423 5,565

Captial Programme
   Stock Improvements & New Builds 7,121 7,158 5,518
   ICT Software 125 125 32
   Purchase of Vehicles 125 140 15

7,371 7,423 5,565



Appendix C

Page 4

-



Reserves Statement - General Fund
2015/16 Outturn

Appendix D

Page 1

GENERAL FUND RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31st MARCH 2016

Balance Transfer Transfer Balance 
as at to Reserve from Reserve as at 

31 March 2015 in year in year 31 March 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Revenue Reserves
    Service Specific Funds

Streetcare Services 22 - (22) -
Development & Growth 40 - (40) -
Accountancy, Finance & Risk 70 - (70) -
Venues & Facilities 40 - (40) -
Environmental Health 20 (20) -
Spatial & Economic Development 20 - 20 -
Stamford Arts Centre - 11 - 11
General Fund Asset Review - 22 - 22
POD - 33 - 33
Enterprise Week 2016 - 10 - 10

212 76 (212) 76
    Capacity Building, Priority Setting and 
    Service Improvement Reserve

Events and Festivals 177 269 (87) 359
Apprenticeships 100 - - 100
Broadband infrastructure 550 - - 550
Waste and Recycling initatives 156 - - 156
Maintenance Reserve 200 100 (166) 134
Economic Development - 150 0 150
Tourism - 50 0 50
Building Control - 37 0 37
Support for corporate reviews 53 - 0 53
Business Support 100 - - 100
Empty Homes Review 10 - (10) 0
Hardship Fund 26 - (16) 10
Welfare Reform Initatives 40 - - 40
Transformation Programme 913 100 (184) 829
BR & CTS Volatility 513 1,386 (170) 1,729
ICT investment 200 100 - 300
Future Service Improvement Reserve 1,050 297 - 1,347
Community Fund 300 - (61 ) 239

4,388 2,489 (694) 6,183

    Local Priorities Reserve 6,409 3,343 - 9,752
    Business Rate Revenue Reserve 1,386 - (1,386) 0
    Invest to Save 358 - 0 358
    Insurance Reserve 401 - (51) 350
    Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 244 - (58) 186
                               - Current Employees 1,513 - - 1,513
    Building Control (93) 2 - (91)
    SEA Reserve 120 41 - 161

Total General Revenue Reserves 14,938 5,951 (2,401) 18,488

Government Grants Received

Council Tax Reform 43 - (43) -
Habitats Directive 51 - (51) -
Housing Planning Delivery Grant 126 - (126) -
Land Charges 25 - (25) -
Homelessness 47 - 0 47
Preventing Repossession 68 - (68) -
Business Rates Deferred 23 - (23) -
Welfare Reform Funding 36 - (36) -
New Burdens Grant 136 - 0 136
Housing Benefit Transitions 11 - (11) -
Efficiency Support Services in Sparse Areas 27 - (27) -
Neighbourhood Planning Grant 53 63 0 116
Capacity Funding 66 43 0 109
Fraud & Error Reduction 10 - (10) -
HLF Project 30 - (14) 16
DHP 27 - 0 27
Individual Electoral Registration - 66 0 66

779 172 (434) 517

Working Balance 1,912 1,912

Total Revenue Reserves 17,629 6,123 (2,835) 20,917

Capital Reserve
LAMS Reserve 133 67 - 200
Regional Housing Grant 15 (15) -
St Peters Hill Development 889 889
General Fund Capital Reserve 1,078 1,000 (70) 2,008
Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 3,413 - 1,696 823 2,540

Total Capital Reserves 5,528 (629) 738 5,637

Total General Fund Reserves 23,157 5,494 (2,097) 26,554



Reserves Statement - HRA
2015-16 Outturn

Appendix D

Page 2

HRA RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31st MARCH 2016

Balance Transfer Transfer Balance 
as at to Reserve from Reserve as at 

31 March 2015 in year in year 31 March 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Revenue Reserves
    Insurance Reserve 250 - (50) 200
    Service Specific Funds: 255 879 (255) 879
    HRA Improvement Reserve 501 - - 501
    Working Balance 4,783 40 - 4,823

Total HRA Revenue Reserves 5,789 919 (305) 6,403

HRA Capital Reserve
    HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 961 1,653 (834) 1,780
    Loan Repayment Reserve 8,347 2,630 - 10,977
    Major Repairs Reserve 5,384 6,117 (4,726) 6,775

Total HRA Capital Reserves 14,692 10,400 (5,560) 19,532

Total HRA Reserves 20,481 11,319 (5,865) 25,935



Page 1 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER 

REPORT NO: CFM374

DATE:    30 June 2016

TITLE: Risk Management Annual Report 2015-16

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

None

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Frances Cartwright
Executive Member Governance

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles
Corporate Finance Manager
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
Tel: (01476) 406210

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) 
below:

Full impact assessment
Required:

No

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS CFM322 Risk Management Annual Report 2014-15
CFM323 Risk Management Framework 
CFM362 Corporate Risk Register 

The above reports can be located by putting their 
reference number in the search section of the committee 
website via the link below:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx
?bcr=1

1. RECOMMENDATION

The Governance & Audit Committee is asked to approve the risk management annual 
report.

Agenda Item 9

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx?bcr=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx?bcr=1


Page 2 

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it is a requirement to 
produce an annual report on the risk management arrangements in place and the 
activities undertaken.  Risk management is fundamental to the Council’s achievement 
of its strategic objectives.  The report being presented covers the financial year 2015-
16 and details the various aspects of work delivered during the course of the year.  

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

Risk Management Framework

The Risk Management Framework was revised and approved by Governance & Audit 
Committee at its meeting in September 2015.  The framework provides details of the 
risk environment the Council operates within and the controls and mechanisms that 
are in place to ensure risk is sufficiently managed by officers and members.  

Risk Management Internal Audit

During the course of the year, and as part of the internal audit work plan for 2015-16, 
an audit was undertaken on the effectiveness of the risk management arrangements in 
place across the Council.  The review focussed on ensuring that the current risk 
management processes are embedded within the Council and that all identified risks 
and controls are in place and agreed actions are followed up on a timely basis.  This is 
to ensure that the Council has an adequate risk management framework in place 
which is sufficient to identify, monitor and mitigate the risks that it faces.

The development and maintenance of an effective risk management system and 
assurance framework is a key element for providing on-going assurance to 
management and members over the effectiveness of controls identified to mitigate 
principal risks that threaten the achievement of strategic objectives.

The review took into account all aspects of how the Council manages risk.  As part of 
the review internal audit identified that the Council has continued to monitor its 
corporate and business risks as part of a formalised process and that changes in the 
business risk profile have been reported where appropriate for consideration on the 
Corporate Risk Register.

The Council was given a substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 
organisation relies to manage risk are suitably designed, consistently applied and 
effective.

The report itself was presented to the Committee at its meeting in March 2016.

Risk Management Group

Risk Management Group, consisting of all Business Managers (and where 
appropriate) Team Leaders and chaired by the Governance & Risk Officer, met 
quarterly during the year to discuss risk management and issues relating to internal 
audit, insurance, counter fraud and governance.



Page 3 

During the year the group has looked at a number of areas such as risk management, 
internal audits and business continuity.  An overview of insurance claims is a regular 
agenda item and ongoing issues are also discussed and relevant officer training is 
provided where necessary.

Strategic Reporting

The Strategic Management Team meet with each Executive Manager on an eight 
weekly basis to undertake Performance Reviews.  As part of these reviews Executive 
Managers will report by exception the outcomes of recent internal audits and action 
plans to address outstanding recommendations.  Business Managers meet with their 
Executive Manager to discuss the level of assurance for key governance areas which 
are also reported by exception through the Performance Review to Strategic 
Management Team.

Business Risk Register

A refresh exercise on business risks was undertaken with Business Managers in 
December 2015.  The exercise assessed if:

a) all the previous risks identified were still relevant
b) those risks were being managed and what controls were in place
c) there were any emerging risks that needed to be included

The review covered both the ‘business as usual’ and ‘exceptional’ risks.  The 
exceptional risks are those risks which are scored as high or they may be a new risk to 
the service which is causing sufficient concern to warrant inclusion on the Exceptional 
Business Risk Register which is further discussed at Risk Management Group.  The 
risks are also being managed through the Council’s corporate risk management 
system.

Corporate Risk Register

The Committee last approved the Corporate Risk Register at the March 2016 meeting 
following a fundamental review with Executive Managers and external expertise from 
our internal auditors RSM.  The Corporate Risk Register has been further updated is 
attached as Appendix A.

Business Continuity

The aim of business continuity is to build ‘organisational resilience’ to ensure that the 
Council can continue to deliver critical aspects of its day-to-day functions during any 
internal event or external emergency that impact on service delivery. In order to 
achieve this there are a number of key internal operational plans which are in place to 
deliver our overall strategy. 

The Business Continuity Corporate Plan sets out who and how we undertake business 
continuity including the role of the recovery team in any event. Supporting this is the 
ICT recovery plan and individual business area plans which are updated following a 
business impact risk assessment for each area.  This process has ensured that plans 
identify the critical area functions and the minimum requirements in terms of recovery 
time, staff and IT, key to service delivery.



Page 4 

Business Continuity Plans have been updated in conjunction with the new Business 
Managers following changes within the organisation.  A Premises Relocation Plan has 
also been prepared which identified relocation options in the event of a major loss of 
premises. 

As a result of lessons identified from the loss of South Oxfordshire District Council 
offices from fire in January 2015, a Business Continuity Challenge event was held.  
This allowed an independent evaluation of our approach to business continuity to take 
place and allowed officers to discuss business requirements and interdependencies.  
This led to a further ongoing update of the ICT disaster recovery plan.

Significant progress has been made specifically in respect of ICT with the introduction 
of offsite automated back-up of data, in order for recovery times to be minimised. 
Further work planned includes the relocation of some IT servers to the Bourne 
Community Access Point in order to make that site a more established back-up 
location for critical services. This work also recognises the increasing frequency of 
attacks against IT networks and picks up learning from both internal and external 
occurrences. 

Conclusion

Members of the Committee have been kept informed during the course of the year on 
the risk management activities being undertaken which this annual report has brought 
together to provide an overview of the achievements.  These include:

 Having in place a ‘fit for purpose’ Risk Management Framework
 Internal engagement and guidance for officers through Risk Management Group
 Continued training and support during the course of the year
 Review and enhancement of both the Business and Corporate Risk Registers to 

ensure they are up to date and relevant
 Having in place effective risk management arrangements as independently 

reviewed by Internal Audit

In summary, the Council has continued to make good progress in embedding risk 
management across the Council.  With internal audit supporting the view that the 
Council has in place effective risk management the focus for the coming year will be to 
maintain the building blocks put in place.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ budget, 
people, land/property etc.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA
         QUALITY)

None



Page 5 

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

None

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None

9. COMMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

These are contained within the report where appropriate.

10. COMMENT OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

Members of the Governance and Audit Committee are responsible for monitoring 
actions taken and to be taken on behalf of the Council to identify corporate risks and 
assess whether they are being effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept up to 
date with details of the risks and how they have been mitigated.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT BUSINESS MANAGER

None

12.     APPENDICES:

Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register 



Appendix A – Draft Corporate Risk Register June 2016

Page 1 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Timeline

1. Ensuring effectiveness of contingency 
plans/recovery plans for key locations/systems

Owner: Executive Manager Environment

Context/Notes
This risk focuses on the Council’s failure to respond and lead in an 
effective manner to a major incident or event. This could be within 
the Council itself ie major IT infrastructure failure, building 
fire/flood or wider within the Community itself, created via an 
external event or emergency. 

Therefore not achieving the intended outcome or making the 
situation worse, thus wasting resources further, contributing to 
damage/injury, as well as a high likelihood of reputation damage 
and potential for legal claims against the Council (even corporate 
manslaughter potential).

 Emergency Plan (EP) maintained and regularly reviewed to 
ensure fit for use  (Effective)

 Desk top training exercise undertaken to test the Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP) facilitated by Lincolnshire County 
Council. Training needs identified and addressed  (Effective)

 ICT Disaster Recovery Plan  (Partially Effective – see action 1.3 
& 1.4)

 BCPs and Business Impact Assessments that identifies 
restoration timescales for key services, with the premises 
relocation plan dealing with physical/site options  (Partially 
effective – see action 1.3 & 1.4)

Likelihood = 1 
x

Impact = 3
=

Medium 3

1.1 Completion of emergency 
plan exercise

1.2 Completion of BCP exercise 
(physical and ICT)

1.3 Complete the premises plan 
linking with the  updating of 
ICT Disaster Recovery Plan

1.4 Telephony resilience 
solution to be introduced

Q3 2016-17

Q3 2016-17

Q1 2016-17

Q2 2016-17

2. Maintaining an effective internal control 
environment (able to mitigate against material 
failure)

Owner:  Executive Manager Corporate & 
Corporate Finance Manager

Context/Notes
This risk focusses on the potential for failure of the Council’s core 
internal control (and governance) framework but leading to a 
significant loss ie financial and otherwise eg H&S failing. 

In effect the Council should be in a position to mitigate such a risk 
through rigorous review of design and application of the controls, 
hence ensuring that internal audit and other assurance activities 
are appropriately focussed. 

The ramifications of a significant control risk failure are 
substantial, not only with regard to the loss but often the 
rectification costs post event, including financial and reputational.

 Annual internal audit plan developed by senior officers and 
members is targeted at key risks areas and responsive to new 
areas of risk  (Effective)

 External audit regime  (Effective)

 Corporate governance, fraud and health & safety team 
resource  (Effective)

 Quarterly assurance statements compiled and reviewed by 
executive managers testing compliance with key business 
activities, supporting Annual Governance Statement 
compilation  (Partially effective –  see action 2.4)

 Range of Performance Indicators that monitor internal 
controls  (Effective)

Likelihood = 2 
x

Impact = 3
=

High 6

2.1 Review and update of key 
polices to ensure they 
match the current working 
environment

2.2 Review of software for 
communicating policy and 
procedure/managing 
compliance

2.3 Development of staff 
training plan in connection 
with core responsibilities 
and duties ie data 
protection, financial rules, 
freedom of information etc

Q3 2016-17

Q2 2016-17

Q2 2016-17



Appendix A – Draft Corporate Risk Register June 2016

Page 2 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Timeline

 Range of polices that underpin the control framework – 
financial regulations, counter fraud strategy, risk management 
framework, contract procedure rules coupled with staff 
induction training and communication of changes when they 
occur  (Partially effective – see actions 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3)

 Regular reporting at member level at Governance and Audit 
Committee  (Effective)

 Compliance with transparency code  (Effective) 

2.4 Strengthen level of 
challenge re outcomes from 
quarterly assurance 
statements to ensure that 
areas in need of 
improvement are 
highlighted and actions 
agreed to make 
improvement required

2.5 Review of Local Code of 
Corporate Governance in 
accordance with the new 
code

Q2 2016-17

Q3 2016-17

3. Ensuring ongoing resilience and quality in third 
parties ie partners, major providers and 
suppliers etc

Owner:  Executive Manager Property

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the potential for the failure of a major supplier 
of Council services or partner with whom the Council co-delivers/ 
enables provision of services or operations. In the event of such a 
failure, either in resilience or quality, then the Council would be 
significantly compromised and would have to undertake major 
remedial work.

The Council undertake considerable checks pre-contract award, 
though may not be as rigorous post award. This may indicate 
some need to strengthen the contract management process and 
how the Council can use this to its advantage. 

There does not appear to be a clear picture of what might be the 
key contracts and/or partnerships and some further work may be 

 Assessment of bids/tenders through scoring of evaluation 
criteria, financial and health & safety diligence checks prior to 
award of contract  (Effective)

 Regular monitoring meetings with contractors throughout life 
of contract  (Partially effective)

 Some contracts based on open book approach to financial 
monitoring  (Partially effective)

 Contracts database kept up to date by individual business 
areas and could be used to identify key contracts/partnerships 
or suppliers  (Not effective)

Likelihood = 3 
x

Impact = 3
=

High 9

3.1 Review of post contract 
award arrangements in 
place for ensuring ongoing 
resilience, quality and 
financial stability of third 
parties

3.2 Review of contracts 
database – use of, and 
maintenance of, data in the 
system and the system’s 
fitness for purpose

Q2 2016-17

Q2 2016-17



Appendix A – Draft Corporate Risk Register June 2016

Page 3 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Timeline

required to establish the risk profile of each of these/impact of 
failure on the Council.

Key third party organisations have been identified in individual 
business area Business Continuity Plans with, so far, some 
indication of alternative contingencies should that party fail to 
provide the service.  

4. Ensuring continued financial sustainability

Owner:  Corporate Finance Manager

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the Council being unable to properly execute 
and achieve its medium term financial plan – what would be the 
underlying causes as well as the effects on the Council and how 
clearly are these understood. 

The Council’s financial standing is currently sound though it is 
imperative that the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) remains 
fit for purpose.

The government are likely to continue to pursue a self-financing 
model for councils.

This risk is also closely linked to risk 5.

 Annual review of MTFP updating the 5 year horizon scan 
including reserve levels and future changes to funding  
(Effective)

 Annual budget setting for revenue and capital including 
funding  (Effective)

 Utilisation of external financial support that provides support 
for funding modelling  (Effective)

 Regular budget monitoring reports and updates to senior 
officers and members  (Effective)

 Development of a Fit for the Future (FFF) transformation plan 
that includes actions that will support the closing of future 
budget gaps  (Partially effective)

 Treasury Management Strategy to ensure the Council are 
acting within the prudential indicators  (Effective)

Likelihood = 2 
x

Impact = 2
=

Medium 4

See 5.

5. Being effective in a commercial environment

Owner:  Executive Manager Commercial 

Context/Notes
This relates to the Council now taking a more commercial outlook 
in the way in which it provides services/does business. This will 

 Mandatory Commercial Awareness workshop attended by 
senior managers (Effective)

 Potential FFF initiatives put forward for evaluation  (Partially 
Effective)

Likelihood = 3 
x

Impact = 3
=

High 9

5.1 Work with Strategic 
Management Team/ 
Members to establish a 
programme of events to 
create a culture to fully 
support taking initiatives 

2016-17



Appendix A – Draft Corporate Risk Register June 2016

Page 4 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Timeline

require a significant transformation in culture, behaviour and 
most of all workforce skill set, coupled with potential implications 
on the Council’s standing orders etc. (Potential link to risks 2 and 
3).

The risk is that the Council will not be able to achieve this, or in 
doing so this impacts detrimentally on the Councils core services/ 
customers ie quality deteriorates at the expense of commerciality.

There is also an implication here on the Council finances if there is 
reliance on outcomes from commercial activity. 

Does the Council have a clear commercial strategy, in particular 
what it means by commerciality and why this is appropriate (a 
reasonable and regular challenge for the Council to ask itself). 
How prepared is the Council culture and skill set/experiences to 
achieve the change that will be required.

 Local Authority Controlled Company in place  (Effective)

 Commercial investment fund created (Effective)

forward.  Establish how the 
Council can build and 
increase corporately its 
commercial capacity, 
capability and behaviour to 
deliver 

5.2 Follow through on case 
study initiatives discussed 
during senior manager 
“Developing Commercial 
Awareness” workshops 
held in February 2016 
(creation of plan)

5.3 Develop a clearly defined 
commercial road map that 
identifies expected 
outcomes covering next 1-5 
yrs

Q1 2016-17

2016-17

Controls effectiveness judgement (assessment by Executive Managers)

 Effective = design of control/mitigation is appropriate and is consistently applied
 Partially effective = improvements in design of control and application required to make effective
 Not effective = the control does achieve the desired outcome


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2016
	6 Internal Audit: Annual Report and Opinion 2015/2016
	7 Internal Audit Follow-up Report
	CFM375 Appendix A Follow Up 1 1.16.17 FINAL SKDC

	8 Draft Financial Outturn 2015/16
	CFM373 Outturn Position Appendices

	9 Risk Management and Business Continuity Annual Report including Corporate Risk Register
	CFM374 Appendix A DRAFT Corporate Risk Register


